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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS 

Notice is hereby given that 8th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Chandni Machines Limited 

will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 through Video Conferencing (VC) or other Audio-

Visual Means (OAVM) at 03:00 PM to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors, 

Auditors and thereon; 

 

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta (DIN: 00193075), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3) Revision in managerial remuneration paid to Mrs. Amita Mehta. 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent or dissent to the following resolution as a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules 

framed thereunder, read together with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Act, and 

the recommendation/approval of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of 

Directors at their respective meeting held on August 8, 2024 the Members do and hereby approve 

the payment of remuneration in excess of the statutory limits prescribed under the Act at Rs. 

1,10,000/- Per Month total amounting to Rs. 13,20,000/- to Ms. Amita Jayesh Mehta(DIN: 00193075), 

the Executive Director for the Financial Year 2024-25 on the following terms and conditions:  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of continuation of inadequacy of profits/loss, the above 

mentioned remuneration will be the minimum remuneration in accordance with the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. Resolved further that the Board of Directors 

and the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorised severally to seek the necessary approval 

as may be required in the matter and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary for 

giving effect to the above resolution.” 

 

4) Revision in managerial remuneration paid to Mr. Jayesh Mehta. 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent or dissent to the following resolution as a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Schedule V of the Act read with 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014 and the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 

subject to other requisite approvals, if any and and the recommendation/approval of Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meeting held on August 8, 

2024, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for revising the 

remuneration paid to Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta (DIN: 00193029), Chairman and Managing 

Director of the Company not exceeding Rs. 15,00,000/- per annum inclusive of perquisites as per 

applicable provisions of the Act read with rules thereof as amended from time to time on the terms 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

4 

 

and conditions of appointment and remuneration as approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr. 

Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta as Chairman and Managing Director, the Company has no profits or its 

profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and 

allowances as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to the provisions prescribed 

under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder 

and any other applicable provisions of the Act or any statutory modification(s) or reenactment 

thereof. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things and execute all such agreements, documents, instruments and writings as may 

be required, with power to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the 

said re-appointment as it may in its sole and absolute discretion deem fit and to delegate all or any 

of its powers herein conferred to any director(s) and/or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to 

this resolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 By the order of the Board  

Chandni Machines Limited 

  

Sd/- 

 

 Jayesh R Mehta  

Date: August 08, 2024 Chairperson & Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai DIN: 00193029 
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NOTES: 

i) An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the 

Special Business set out in Item No. 3 and 4 of the accompanying Notice to be transacted at the 

Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto. 

 

ii) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circulars No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020; 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020; 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020; 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020; 

33/2020 dated September 28, 2020; 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020; 10/2021 dated June 23, 

2021; 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021; 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022; 11/2022 dated December 

28, 2022 and 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘MCA 
Circulars’) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its Circular Nos. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79,SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11, SBEI/HO/CFD/CMD2

/CIR/P/2022/62 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/PoD2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 

2021, May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023 have permitted the Companies to hold their Annual 

General Meeting (“AGM”) through video conferencing / any other audio visual means (“VC 
facility”) without the physical presence of the members at a common venue.  
 

iii) In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) and MCA Circulars and 
the SEBI Circulars, the 8th AGM of the Company is being held through VC facility. The Registered 

Office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM in accordance with SS-2 

issued by ICSI read with Clarification / Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards on 

Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) dated April 15, 2020. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the  AGM is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 

Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI 

Circulars through VC / OAVM facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed 

with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for 

the 8th AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

However, the Body Corporate are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the 

AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

iv) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA 

Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility 

of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 

this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Purva Sharegistry (India) Private 

Limited (Purva) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting 

system during the AGM will be provided by Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

 

v) The Board of Directors have appointed M/s S P K G & Co. LLP, Practicing Chartered Accountant, 

(Membership No.:178942) Mumbai as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-

voting at AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

vi) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to 

at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
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vii) Corporate/ Institutional Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) intending to 

appoint their authorized representatives pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, to attend the 8th 

AGM through VC/OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting are requested to send a certified 

copy of the Board Resolution / Authority Letter / etc. (PDF/JPG format) to the Scrutinizer by e-

mail at ashutosh.somani@spkg.co.in  with a copy marked to compliance@cteil.com. They can 

also upload their Board Resolution / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board 
Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login. 

 

viii) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the 

purpose of quorum for the AGM as per the applicable Circulars. 

 

ix) In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report for FY 

2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses 

are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (DPs)/ Registrar & Transfer Agent 

(RTA) support@purvashare.com. The Company shall send a physical copy of the Annual Report 

to those Members who request for the same at compliance@cml.net.in mentioning their Folio 

No./DP ID and Client ID.  The Notice convening the 8th AGM and the Annual Report 2023-24 

have been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.cml.net.in and may also be 

accessed from the relevant section on the website of the Stock Exchange, i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com. The Notice of the AGM is also available on the website of Purva Sharegistry 

(India) Pvt. Ltd at https://evoting.purvashare.com/. 

 

x) The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on 23rd September, 2024 being Cut-off Date. 

 

xi) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 

directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available 

electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the 

Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the 

date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. September 30, 2024. Members 

seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to compliance@cml.net.in. 

 

xii) Further, SEBI vide its circular dated 3rd November, 2021, read with clarification dated 14th 

December, 2021 introduced common and simplified norms for processing investor’s service 
request by Registrar and Transfer Agent(s) (RTAs) and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details 

and Nomination. Accordingly, effective 1st January, 2022, the RTA shall not process any service 

requests or complaints received from the holder(s) / claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination 

documents/details are updated. On or after 1st April, 2023, in case of any of the above cited 

documents/details are not available in the folios, RTA shall be constrained to freeze such 

folios. The Company has sent individual letters to all the Members holding shares of the 

Company in physical form for furnishing the aforesaid details. This communication was also 

intimated to the Stock Exchanges and available on the website of the Company. In view of this 

requirement and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 

management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to update their KYC 

details (through Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and Form ISR-3, as applicable) and consider 

converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can download Forms to make their 

service request with RTA from link https://www.purvashare.com or contact the Company’s RTA 
022 - 23016761 (‘Registrar’) at (email of RTA) support@purvashare.com for assistance in this 

regard. 

 

As per the provisions of the Act and applicable SEBI Circular, Members holding shares in 

physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 or make changes to their 

nomination details through Form SH-14 and Form ISR-3. In respect of shares held in 

mailto:ashutosh.somani@spkg.co.in
mailto:compliance@cteil.com
mailto:support@purvashare.com
mailto:compliance@cml.net.in
http://www.cml.net.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://evoting.purvashare.com/
mailto:compliance@cml.net.in
https://www.purvashare.com/
mailto:support@purvashare.com
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dematerialized form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective DPs. The relevant 

forms are available on the company website at  www.cml.net.in 

 

xiii) Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-

mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, PAN, registration of nomination, Power of Attorney 

registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic 

form and to the Registrar in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no. 

Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant 

in the securities market. 

 

xiv) To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify 

the Company of any change in address or demise of any joint holder / Member as soon as 

possible. Members are also advised to periodically obtain / request their DP for statement of 

their shareholding and the same be verified from time to time. 

 

xv) In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 

names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM 

AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

(i) The voting period begins on September 27, 2024 at 09:00 AM and ends on September 29, 2024 at 

05:00 PM. During this period Shareholder’s of the Company, holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of September 23, 2024 may 

cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Purva for voting 

thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at 

the meeting venue. 

 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility 

to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed 
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 

negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 

IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 

been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register 

again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing 

ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

http://www.cml.net.in/


ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

8 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi/ Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

visit  www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 

Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per 

the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the 

user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME/PURVA, so that the user can visit the e-

Voting service providers’ website directly. 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

 www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
“Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual 

shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website https://evoting.purvashare.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholder/Member” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 

 

4) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com or 

www.evoting.nsdl.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing 

password is to be used.  

 

5) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 

Physical Form 

PAN • Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://evoting.purvashare.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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contact Company/RTA. 

 Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as 

mentioned in instruction (v). 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(ix) Click on the EVENT NO. for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO/ABSTAIN” for voting. Select the option YES or NO or ABSTAIN as desired. The option 
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution, option NO implies that you dissent to the 

Resolution and option ABSTAIN implies that you are not voting either for or against the 

Resolution. 

 

(xi) Click on the “NOTICE FILE LINK” if you wish to view the Notice. 
 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(xiv) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – Remote Voting 

 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 

are required to log on to https://evoting.purvashare.com and register themselves in the 

“Custodians / Mutual Fund” module.  
• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 

be emailed to evoting@purvashare.com.  

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 

they wish to vote on. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 

for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 

the email address viz; compliance@cml.net.in, if they have voted from individual tab & 

not uploaded same in the Purva e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

  

  

https://evoting.purvashare.com/
mailto:evoting@purvashare.com
mailto:compliance@cml.net.in
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is the same as the 

instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend the meeting will be available where the EVENT NO. of Company 

will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-

voting. 

 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7(Seven) days prior 

to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile 

number at compliance@cml.net.in. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM 

but have queries may send their queries in advance 7(Seven) days prior to meeting mentioning 

their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

compliance@cml.net.in. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ ask questions during the meeting. 

 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 

doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if 

the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the 

votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the 

meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP)  

 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

mailto:compliance@cml.net.in
mailto:compliance@cml.net.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE ACT 

Item No. 3: 

 

Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta was appointed as Non-Executive Directors of the Company on April 12, 

2016. She possesses diverse knowledge and have rich experience in sourcing of Materials. The 

Company is immensely benefitted from her continued guidance. For the Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta 

was designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company, therefore she was only paid sitting fees 

for the Board meetings, which do not commensurate with her contributions to the Company. So, 

the Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 8, 2024 changed the designation of Mrs. 

Amita Jayesh Mehta from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director. Further on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors passed 

resolution for revise the remuneration paid to Mrs. Amita Mehta. Mrs. Amita Mehta shall be eligible 

for a remuneration of Rs. 1,10,000/- per month amounting to Rs. 13,20,000/- per annum for the 

Financial Year 2024-25. It may be noted that the proposed remuneration of Rs. 13,20,000/- is in 

excess of limits prescribed under part II schedule V.  

 

Accordingly, approval of the Members is sought for the proposal by way of a Special Resolution. The 

Board recommends the resolution for the consideration of the Members. Except the Mrs. Amita 

Jayesh Mehta and her relatives, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company or their relatives are deemed to be concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the 

above proposal. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 3 for approval of members by way of a Special 

Resolution 

 

Item No. 4: 

 

The members of the company at their meeting held on September 29, 2023 approved re-

appointment of Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta (DIN: 00193029) as a Chairman and Managing Director 

of the Company at Rs. 45,000/- per month remuneration. Keeping in view Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal 

Mehta’s (DIN: 00193029) rich and varied experience in the business of manufacturing of machines, 
his involvement in the operations of the Company over a long period of time, and his pioneering role 

in guiding the Company and contribution towards improvement in performance of the Company, 

the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, at their Meeting held on August 08, 2024 approved the revision in remuneration of Mr. 

Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta (DIN: 00193029) not exceeding Rs. 15,00,000/- per annum inclusive of 

perquisites as per applicable provisions of the Act read with rules thereof as amended from time to 

time on the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration as approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Company on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The remuneration shall be paid to Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta (DIN: 00193029) as the minimum 

remuneration in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company. 

It is proposed to seek the members’ approval for the revision in remuneration of Mr. Jayesh 

Ramniklal Mehta (DIN: 00193029) for payment of remuneration in excess of limits under Section 

197 and Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the other applicable provisions of 

the Act and Regulation as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

Accordingly, approval of the Members is sought for the proposal by way of a Special Resolution. The 

Board recommends the resolution for the consideration of the Members. Except the Mr. Jayesh 

Ramniklal Mehta and his relatives, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company or their relatives are deemed to be concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the 

above proposal. 

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 for approval of members by way of a Special 

Resolution. 
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ANNEXURE - I  

 

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to 

Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations) and SS-2 Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 

seeking re-appointment at ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting.  

 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1.  Name of the Director Amita Jayesh Mehta 

2.  Age 60 

3.  DIN 00193075 

4.  Date of Birth 01/11/1963 

5.  Date if first appointment on the Board 12/04/2016 

6.  Qualifications Commerce Graduate 

7.  Expertise Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta deals with the 

sourcing of Materials. 

8.  Other Directorships a. Candour Techtex Limited 

b. JR Auto Components Private Limited 

c. KJM Engineering Tools Private Limited 

d.  Number of meetings of the Board attended 

during the year 

5 

e.  Listed companies (other than Chandni 

Machines Limited) in which she holds 

directorship and committee membership*  

*includes only Audit Committee & 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

Candour Techtex Limited 

 

f.  Shareholding in Chandni Machines Limited 5,51,925 

g.  Relationship between directors inter-se Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta is the spouse of 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta. 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To 

The Members 

Chandni Machines Limited, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual Report together with Audited Financial 

Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 of CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED. The Financial 

Results of the Company have been summarized and given below: 

 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

                                                                                                                (In Rupees) 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Revenue from Operations 165,92,70,966 51,62,15,967 

Other Income 87,04,224 35,06,470 

Total Revenue 166,79,75,190 51,97,22,437 

Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax (PBDIT) 2,80,30,469 70,96,684 

Less: Depreciation 38,23,930 20,90,940 

Less: Finance Cost 4,13,394 1,30,352 

Profit Before Tax 2,37,93,145 48,75,392 

Provision for Tax:   

Current Tax 71,37,647 9,89,725 

Deferred tax (6,39,027) 3,90,163 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1,72,94,525 34,95,504 

Balance brought forward from previous year 3,42,69,773 3,07,74,269 

Balance carried to Balance sheet 5,15,64,298 3,42,69,773 

 

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS: 

 

Turnover of the Company has Increased to Rs. 165,92,70,966/- in the Current Year as compared to 

Rs. 51,62,15,967/- Lakhs in the Previous Year. 

 

The Profit before tax has increased to Rs. 2,37,93,145/- in the Current Year as compared to Rs. 

48,75,392/- in the Previous Year.  

 

The Net Profit after tax has increased to Rs. 1,72,94,525/- in the Current Year as compared to Rs. 

34,95,504/- in the Previous Year.  

 

3. DIVIDEND: 

 

The Board of Directors ("Board") after assessing the performance, capital position, solvency and 

liquidity levels of the Company and in order to conserve the resources of Company, your Directors 

do not recommend any dividend. 

 

The Company has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy which has been approved by the Board. 

In terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) the Dividend Distribution Policy is hosted on the website of the 
Company at www.cml.net.in. 

 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

The Company had profits of Rs. 1,72,94,525/- as at March 31, 2024. An amount of Rs. 1,72,94,525/- 

is proposed to be retained in the Profit & Loss Account. 

 

 

http://www.cml.net.in/
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5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

 

During the financial year, there has been no change in the business of the Company or in the nature 

of business carried by the Company during the financial year under review.  

 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 

 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which financial 

statement relate and the date of the Report. 

 

7. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

As on 31st March, 2024 your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture 

Companies. 

 

8. SIGNIFICANT / MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ COURTS: 

 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts that would impact the 

going concern status and the Company’s operation in future. 
 

9. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director Designation Appointment 

Date 

Resignation 

Date 

1. Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal 

Mehta 

Chairperson & Managing 

Director 

12.04.2016 - 

2. Mr. Bharat Sugnomal 

Bhatia 

Non- Executive & Independent 

Director 

20.09.2018 - 

3. Mr. Rameshchand Garg Non- Executive & Independent 

Director 

20.09.2018 - 

4. Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin Non- Executive & Independent 

Director 

08.11.2021 - 

5. Mrs. Amita Jayesh 

Mehta 

Non- Executive Director 12.04.2016 - 

6. Mr. Bharat Keshavlal 

Shah 

Director & Chief Financial 

Officer 

07.02.2018 - 

7. Ms. Neelam Devani Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer 

01.12.2021 - 

 

10. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

All Independent Directors have given declaration of compliance of Rule - 6(1) & (2) of Companies 

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended along with the declaration 

that they meet the Criteria of Independence as laid down under Section - 149(6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

The Company convened Independent Director's Separate Meeting in terms of Schedule - IV to the 

Companies Act, 2013 on 2nd February, 2024. 

 

11. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Board of Directors duly met Five (5) times during the financial year from 01st April, 2023 to 31st 

March, 2024. The dates on which meetings were held are 29th May 2023, 10th August 2023, 24th 

August, 2023, 6th November 2023, and 2nd February 2024. All the Members were present in the 

Meeting. 
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The gap between two Board Meetings didn’t exceed 120 days as per Section - 173 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

12. ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS: 

 

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

and at last AGM are as under: 

 

Name of Director Category Number of Board 

Meetings 

Attendance at 

the last AGM 

Held Attended Held on 

29/09/2023 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal 

Mehta 

Managing Director 5 5 Yes 

Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta Non- Executive 

Director 

5 5 Yes 

Mr. Bharat Keshavlal Shah Chief Financial 

Officer, Executive 

Director 

5 5 Yes 

Mr. Bharat Sugnomal 

Bhatia 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

5 5 Yes 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg Non-Executive, 

Independent 

5 5 Yes 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin Non-Executive, 

Independent 

5 5 Yes 

 

13. COMMITTEES: 

 

Your Company has duly constituted the following mandatory Committees in terms of the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder viz.: 

 

⚫ Audit Committee: 

 

The Composition of Audit Committee is in alignment with provision of Section-177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued thereunder and Regulation-18 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. The members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have experience in 

financial management.  

 

The Composition of Audit Committee is as under: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Designation in the 

Committee 

Mr. Bharat Sugnomal Bhatia Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta Managing Director Member 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 

 

During the year Four (4) meetings of Audit Committee was held on 29th May 2023, 10th August 2023 

and 6th November 2023 and 2nd February 2024. Attendance of Directors at the Audit Committee 

Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 are as under: 
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Name of Director Audit Committee Meeting 

Held Attended 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 4 4 

Mr. Bharat Sugnomal Bhatia  4 4 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg  4 4 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin 4 4 

 

The Board accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee whenever made by the 

Committee during the year. 

 

⚫ Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as under: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Designation in the 

Committee 

Mr.  Bharat Sugnomal Bhatia Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta Managing Director Member 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 

 

During the year Two (2) meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 24th 

August 2023 and 6th November 2023. Attendance of Directors at the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is as 

under: 

 

Name of Director Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee Meeting 

Held Attended 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 2 2 

Mr. Bharat Sugnomal Bhatia  2 2 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg  2 2 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin 2 2 

 

The Board accepted the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

whenever made by the Committee during the year. 

 

⚫ Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 

The Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee is as under: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Designation in the 

Committee 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg  Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 

 Mr. Bharat Sugnomal 

Bhat 

Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal 

Mehta 

Managing Director Member 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin Non Executive Independent 

Director 

Member 
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During the year Two (2) Meetings of Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held on 10th August 

and 6th November 2023. Attendance of Directors at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is as under: 

 

Name of Director Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee 

Held Attended 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 2 2 

Mr. Bharat Sugnomal Bhatia  2 2 

Mr. Rameshchand Garg  2 2 

Mr. Richie Hiralal Amin 2 2 

 

The Board accepted the recommendations of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

whenever made by the Committee during the year. 

 

14. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 

 

The Company has been following a policy with respect to appointment and remuneration of 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The appointment of 

Directors on the Board is subject to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC). Based on the recommendation of the NRC, the remuneration of Executive 

Director is fixed in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Act, 2013 which comprises of 
Basic Salary, Perquisites, Allowances and Commission. The Remuneration of Non-Executive 

Directors comprises of sitting fees in accordance with the provisions Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The criteria for appointment of Board of Directors and Remuneration Policy of your Company are 

placed on the website of the Company http://www.cml.net.in  

 

15. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME: 

 

The details of programs for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 

responsibilities, in the Company and related matters are put up on the website of the Company at 

the link: http://www.cml.net.in 

 

16. BOARD EVALUATION: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee formulated the criteria for evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors, its 

various Committees constituted as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Individual 

Directors. Based on that, the Board of Directors carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own 

performance and of its various Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee expressed their satisfaction with its performance 

and performance of its committees. The Board of Directors also evaluated the performance of 

individual Director on the basis of self-appraisal and expressed their satisfactory performance. The 

Board of Directors also carried out an annual performance evaluation of its Independent Directors 

and expressed their satisfaction with their functioning / performance. 

 

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

The statement of particulars of Appointment and Remuneration of managerial personnel pursuant 

to Section - 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule - 5 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in the “Annexure – II”. 

 

http://www.cml.net.in/
http://www.cml.net.in/
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Pursuant to Rule - 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, none of the employees of the Company was in receipt of the remuneration during the 

financial year 2023-2024, which in aggregate was in excess of Rs. 1.02 Crores per year or Rs. 8.5 

Lakhs per month or in excess of remuneration drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-Time 

Director or Manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less 

than two percent of the equity shares of the Company. 

 

18. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH 

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Controls. This ensures that all assets 

are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those 

transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. An extensive programme of Internal 

Audits and Management reviews supplements the process of internal control. Properly 

documented policies, guidelines and procedures are laid down for this purpose. The Internal 

Control System has been designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for 

preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining accountability of assets. The 

Company has in placed adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements.  

 

In accordance with Rule - 8(5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, it is hereby confirmed 

that the Internal Financial Controls are adequate with reference to the Financial Statements.  

 

19. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

Pursuant to Section - 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors to the best of their knowledge 

hereby state and confirm that:  

 

• In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures. 

 

• The Directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company at the 31st March, 2024 and of its profit for the year. 

 

• The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities. 

 

• The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

• The Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and 

such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively, and; 

 

• The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

20. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

The Company has not accepted any Public Deposits within the meaning of Section - 73 to 76 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the 

year under review and there are no outstanding deposits which are pending for repayment. 
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21. LOAN FROM DIRECTOR: 

 

During the year under review, your Company has not received any loan from any Directors of the 

Company. 

 

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

 

The particulars of Loans, Guarantees, and Investments have been disclosed in the Financial 

Statements read together with Notes annexed to and forming an integral part of the Financial 

Statements. 

 

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 

All Related Party Transactions are entered on Arm’s Length Basis and in the ordinary course of 

business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. The disclosure of Related 

Party Transactions as required under Section - 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 

is given in “Annexure – III” of this Report. 
 

The details of transactions with Related Parties are also provided in the Company’s Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards.  

 

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been uploaded 

on the Company’s website and can be seen at the link: www.cml.net.in  

 

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

Since the company is involved in Trading of machinery, the provisions of conservation of energy and 

technology absorptions are not applicable to the company. 

 

During the year under review your company has following Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

 

 

25. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

The Company has a Risk Management framework for identification, assessment and mitigation of 

risks. This framework essentially creates transparency and minimizes the risk and adverse impact 

on the business objectives and enhances the Company’s competitive edge. This frame work 
consists of various risk models helping in identifying risk, risk trends, exposure and potential 

influence analysis is separately for various business segments and at various levels of the 

Company.  

 

Based on the operations of the Company new risks, if any, are identified, appropriate steps are 

taken to mitigate them. Our internal control encompasses various management system, structures 

of organisation, standard and code of conduct which all put together help in managing the risks 

associated with the Company. 

  

Particulars F.Y. 2023-2024 F.Y. 2022-2023 

Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 6,52,293/ 2,73,254/- 

http://www.cml.net.in/
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26. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

 

In pursuant to the provisions of Section - 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil 

Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil 

Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company: 

http://www.cml.net.in  

 

27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

Your Company does not fall in the ambit of limit as specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule framed there under in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 

28. STATUTORY AUDITOR AND STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

 

The Statutory Auditor of the Company were re-appointed at the 6th Annual General Meeting held on 

September 29, 2022, to hold the office for a period of five years till the conclusion of the 11th Annual 

General Meeting to be held in the year 2027, in terms of the applicable provisions of Section 139 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014.  

 

The Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year 2023-2024, issued 

by M/s. Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, does not contain any qualification, 

observation, disclaimer, reservation or adverse remark. 

 

During the year under review, no instances of fraud were reported by the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company as per Section 142(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

29. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section - 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has 

appointed M/s. N L Bhatia & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial 

Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Report is attached herewith as 

“Annexure – IV” to the Board’s Report.  
 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimer in the Secretarial Audit 

Report. 

During the year under review, no instances of fraud were reported by the Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company. 

 

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF 

INDIA (ICSI): 

 

Your Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards have been followed during the 

financial year 2023-2024. 

 

31. ANNUAL RETURN: 

 

The Annual Return for F.Y. 2023-2024 is available on the website of the Company at www.cml.net.in 

 

32. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year under review, as stipulated 

under Regulation - 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is 

presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report as “Annexure – V”. 

 

http://www.cml.net.in/
http://www.cml.net.in/
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33. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING IN SECURITIES: 

 

During the year, Company has amended the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in 

Securities (“Code”) in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Amendment 
Regulations, 2018, which is effective from 01st April, 2019. The amended Code is uploaded on the 

website of the Company. The objective of the Code is to protect the interest of shareholders at 

large, to prevent misuse of any Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) and to prevent any 

insider trading activity by dealing in shares of the Company by its Directors, Designated Persons and 

Employees. 

 

Further the company has maintained structured digital database (SDD) under regulation 3(5) of SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 for capturing and maintain the trail of sharing UPSI 

of the company with the Designated Persons. 

 

34. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

Pursuant to the Regulation - 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions shall not apply to 

listed entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not 

exceeding Rupees Twenty Five Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year. The Equity 

Share Capital of the company is less than Ten Crore and the net worth of the company is less than 

Twenty Five Crore, therefore the provisions pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not Applicable to the company and is 

not required to make report Corporate Governance. 

 

35. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 

The Company has in place Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The Company has provided a safe and dignified work environment for employee which is free of 

discrimination. The objective of this Policy is to provide Protection against Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace and for Redressal of any such complaints of harassment.  

 

Pursuant to requirements of Section - 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, it is hereby declared 

that the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under 

review. 

 

36. INSIDER TRADING CODE: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (as amended 

from time to time), the Company has formulated a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 

Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (‘Fair Disclosure Code’) which are in force. 
The Fair Disclosure Code is available on the website of the Company at www.cml.net.in  

 

37. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES: 

 

The Company confirms that it has paid Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-2025 to the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. The BSE Limited where the Company’s shares are listed. 
 

38. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

• The Company is in the business of Trading, therefore provisions of Cost records are not 

applicable to the Company. 

http://www.cml.net.in/
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• There is no application made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 during the FY2024. 

• There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

• Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

39. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 

Statements in Annual Report, including those which relate to Management Discussion and 

Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may 
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable Laws and Regulations. 
Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ. 

 

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received 

from the Company’s Customers, Vendors, Bankers, Auditors, Investors, Government Authorities 
and Stock Exchange during the year under review. Your Directors place on record their appreciation 

 

of the contributions made by employee at all levels. Your Company’s consistent growth was made 
possible by their hard work, solidarity, co-operation and support. 

 

 

  

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

  

 Sd/- 

 Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 

Date: August 08, 2024 Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai DIN: 00193029      
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ANNEXURE – I 

 

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to 

Regulation - 36(3) of the Listing Regulations) and SS-2 Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings seeking re-appointment at ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting. 

 

Name of Director Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta 

 Date of Birth  01/11/1963 

 Qualification  Commerce Graduate 

 Nationality Indian 

 Date of First Appointment 17/06/1986 

 Designation Non-Executive Director 

 Director Identification Number 00193075 

Brief Profile including expertise in Specific 

Functional Area. 

Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta deals with the 

sourcing of Materials. 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the 

Financial Year 2023-2024. 

Mrs. Amita Mehta attended all the 5 Board 

Meetings conducted during the year. 

Directorships in other Listed Companies Candour Techtex Limited 

Membership /Chairpersonship of 

Committees of other Board as on 31st 

March, 2024. 

 Nil 

Total shares held by her in the Company 

with other Directors 

13,90,346 (43.08%) Equity Shares of Rs.  10/- 

each. Mrs. Amita Jayesh Mehta is the spouse of 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 For and on behalf of Chandni Machines Limited 

  

 Sd/- 

Date:  August 08, 2024 Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 

Place: Mumbai Managing Director 

DIN: 00193029      
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ANNEXURE –II 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 

Disclosures in terms of Sub-Section 12 of Section - 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule - 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

S. No. Requirement Disclosure 

• 
 

The ratio of the remuneration of each 

Director to the median remuneration 

of the employees of the Company for 

the financial year. 

Name of Director Ratio 

Mr. Jayesh Ramniklal 

Mehta 

1.70:1 

 

• The percentage increase in 

remuneration of each Director, Chief 

Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Officer and Company Secretary in 

the financial year. 

Name of Director/ 

CEO/CFO/CS 

Percentage   increase in their 

remuneration during the 

Financial Year ended 2024 

Mr. Jayesh R 

Mehta 

Nil 

Ms. Neelam 

Devani 

nil 

• The percentage increase in the 

median remuneration of employees 

in the Financial Year 

Not Applicable 

• Number of permanent employees on 

the rolls of Company at the end of 

Financial    Year 

09 employees 

• Average percentile increase already 

made in the salaries of employees 

other than the managerial personnel 

in the last Financial Year and its 

comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial 

remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any 

exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial 

remuneration.  

Not Applicable 

• Affirmation that the remuneration is 

as per the Remuneration Policy of 

the Company. 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per 

the Remuneration Policy of the Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 For and on behalf of Chandni Machines Limited 

  

 

 

Sd/- 

 Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 

Date: August 08, 2024 Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai DIN: 00193029      
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ANNEXURE – III 

Form No. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section - 134 of the Act and Rule - 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 

with related parties referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section - 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

(i) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 

 

There were no contracts or arrangements, or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st 

March, 2024, which were not at arm’s length basis. 
 

(ii) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

 

Name of the 

Related 

parties 

Nature of contracts / 

arrangements / 

transactions 

Duration of the 

contracts / 

arrangements / 

transactions 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any 

Amount 

paid as 

advances, 

if any 

Candour 

Techtex 

Limited 

Sale of Goods 01-04-2023 to 31-

03-2024 

1,69,76,000  

 

 

 

 

 

N.A. 

Interest Received 01-04-2023 to 31-

03-2024 

11,92,780 

Rent/Compensation 

Paid 

01-04-2023 to 31-

03-2024 

19,45,827 

Mr. Jayesh 

Ramniklal 

Mehta 

Remuneration paid to 

Managing Director 

01-04-2023 to 31-

03-2024 

5,40,000 

Ms. Neelam 

Devani 

Salary & Bonus 10-12-2023 to 31-

03-2024 

1,80,000 

 

 

 

  

 For and on behalf of Chandni Machines Limited 

  

Sd/- 

 Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 

Date:  August 08, 2024 Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai DIN: 00193029      
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ANNEXURE – IV 

 

To,  

The Members, 

Chandni Machines Limited 

 

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audit. 

 

2. We have followed the auditing standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (“ICSI”) and audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. We 

believe that the processes and practices, we have followed are aligned with Auditing Standards 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Wherever required we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance 

of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and Other Applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, 

Standard is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

 For M/S. N. L. Bhatia & Associates 

 Practising Company Secretaries 

 UIN: P1996MH055800 

 PR NO.: 700/2020 

  

SD/- 

  

 N L Bhatia 

Partner 

 FCS:1176 

Date: May 29, 2024 CP. NO.: 422 

Place: Mumbai.   UDIN: F001176F000490401   
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FORM NO. MR-3 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section - 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. - 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Chandni Machines Limited 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

adherence to good governance practices by “Chandni Machines Limited” having Corporate 
Identification Number (CIN) L74999MH2016PLC279940 (hereinafter called “the Company”).  
Secretarial Audit was conducted in conformity with the Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India (“the Auditing Standards”) and the processes and practices followed 
during the conduct of Audit are aligned with the Auditing Standards to provide us a reasonable basis 

for evaluating the Corporate Conducts/ Statutory Compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns files 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the Secretarial Audit, we 

hereby report that in our Opinion, the Company has, during the Audit period covering the Financial 

Year ended on March 31, 2024, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the 

provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder including statutory 
amendments made thereto and modifications thereof for the time being in force. 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder. 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulation and Bye-Laws framed thereunder. 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings to the extent applicable. 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-  

1. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.  

2. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time. 

3. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended from time to time. 

4. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2018; Not Applicable during the financial year 

5. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the financial year 
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6. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the financial year 

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not Applicable during 

the financial year 

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

Applicable during the financial year 

9. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not 

Applicable during the financial year 

 

(vi) Other Applicable Laws as per Annexure-A. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI);  

 

(ii) Guidelines issued by MCA and SEBI relating to conducting the meeting via video 

conferencing and Other Audio-Visual means. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  

 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  

 

Adequate notice was given to all the Directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings, 

agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. All the decisions at the Board Meetings were passed unanimously and with 

requisite majority in General Meeting 

 

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. All notices/ queries received from regulatory authorities 

have been replied in time. 

 

 

 For M/S. N. L. Bhatia & Associates 

 Practising Company Secretaries 

 UIN: P1996MH055800 

 PR NO.: 700/2020 

  

SD/- 

  

 N L Bhatia 

Partner 

 FCS:1176 

Date: May 29, 2024  CP. NO.: 422 

Place: Mumbai.   UDIN: F001176F000490401 
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Annexure –A 

LIST OF APPLICABLE LAWS 

 

1. Tax Laws:  

a. GST Act, 2017. 

b. Income Tax Act, 1961. 

2. Employee Laws:  

a. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Payment of Gratuity (Central) Rules, 1972. 

b. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Payment of Bonus Rules, 1975. 

c. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936. 

d. The Minimum Wages Act 1948. 

e. The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and Scheme framed 
thereunder. 

f. The Employees’ State Insurance Act 1948. 
g. Factories Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder 

h. Labour Welfare Fund Act. 

3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

4. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

Note: This is an indicative list and not an exhaustive list. 
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ANNEXURE-V 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The global injection molding machine market size was estimated at USD 15.99 billion in 2023 and is 

projected to grow at a CAGR of 4.7% from 2024 to 2030. The market has witnessed significant 

growth in recent years, driven by the rising demand for molded plastic products across various 

industries. Injection molding machines play a crucial role in the manufacturing process by injecting 

molten material into a mold, resulting in the production of a wide range of products with high 

precision and efficiency. 

 

 

   

Key factors driving the market growth are the increasing adoption of plastic components in 

automotive, packaging, consumer goods, and medical sectors. These industries require mass 

production of intricate parts, which can be efficiently achieved through injection molding, thus 

boosting the demand for injection molding machines. 

 

The rising demand for on-the-go packaged products in the U.S. owing to the increased purchasing 

power and the busy lifestyle of consumers is expected to have a positive impact on the market 

growth of the packaging industry in the country. The flourishing packaging industry and the rising 

adoption of injection-molded packaging products are anticipated to drive the demand for these 

products in the U.S. over the forecast period. 

 

Technological advancements in injection molding machines, such as the integration of automation 

and robotics, have further enhanced their efficiency, accuracy, and productivity. Manufacturers are 

investing in the development of advanced machines equipped with features like real-time 

monitoring, predictive maintenance, and energy efficiency, thereby driving market growth. 

 

The growing emphasis on sustainability and environmental concerns has led to the adoption of eco-

friendly materials and processes in manufacturing. Injection molding machines are increasingly 

being used with biodegradable and recycled materials, aligning with the global shift towards 

sustainable practices and contributing to market expansion. 

 

Rising population and improving economic conditions create high demand in consumer goods and 

food & beverage industries. This poses high competition for manufacturers, creating need for 
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product differentiation with attractive packaging which results in a high growth rate for complex, 

high-quality packaging products. These factors are expected to drive the market growth over the 

forecast period. 

 

Market Concentration & Characteristics 

 

The market growth stage is medium, and the pace is accelerating. The market is characterized by a 

high degree of innovation owing to rapid technological advancements. Manufacturers are focusing 

on developing efficient injection molding machines, which can bring down manufacturing costs, 

enhance production flexibility, reduce scrap generated, minimize maintenance requirements, and 

shorten production cycle time in different industries. 

 

Globalization has intensified competition within the global market, with manufacturers expanding 

their presence in new geographic regions to tap into emerging market opportunities. Localized 

production, distribution, and support capabilities enable manufacturers to better serve regional 

markets, adapt to local regulations, and respond swiftly to customer needs, thereby gaining a 

competitive edge. 

 

Manufacturers are increasingly seeking machines that offer versatility to produce a wide range of 

products with varying complexities and specifications. This demand has led to the development of 

modular injection molding systems that can be easily reconfigured to accommodate different 

molds, materials, and production requirements. Such flexibility enables manufacturers to swiftly 

adapt to changing market demands and capitalize on new opportunities. 

 

The competitive landscape of the global market is characterized by intense competition among key 

players, leading to continuous technological advancements and product innovations. Companies 

are focusing on strategic collaborations, mergers, and acquisitions to expand their market presence 

and enhance their product portfolios. In addition, investments in research and development 

activities are aimed at addressing evolving customer needs and staying ahead in the competitive 

landscape. 

 

Material Insights 

 

Based on material, the plastic segment led the market with the largest revenue share of 76.7% in 

2023. Rapid growth in the consumption of plastic parts in the automotive industry owing to their 

lightweight and cost is expected to fuel the market growth over the forecast period. Plastic products 

provide great precision and high repeatability, with a low cost per part. The machine also produces 

complex geometric parts in large volumes. Compared to other conventional methods, the plastic 

injection molding machine production process is fast and it reduces the labour cost associated. 
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Factors such as superior surface finish, high resistance, and the ability to manufacture complex 

parts have resulted in an increased demand for metal molded products. The other materials used in 

the injection molding machine processes include rubber and ceramics. The rubber segment is an 

excellent process used for the high-volume production of small- to medium-sized parts, complex 

inserts with near-dimensional tolerances, and homogenous components. As this process can 

develop complicated elastomeric components using very low cycle times, it is gaining a rapid 

footing in various markets worldwide. 

 

Based on material, the plastic segment led the market with the largest revenue share of 76.7% in 

2023. Rapid growth in the consumption of plastic parts in the automotive industry owing to their 

lightweight and cost is expected to fuel the market growth over the forecast period. Plastic products 

provide great precision and high repeatability, with a low cost per part. The machine also produces 

complex geometric parts in large volumes. Compared to other conventional methods, the plastic 

injection molding machine production process is fast and it reduces the labour cost associated. 

 

Factors such as superior surface finish, high resistance, and the ability to manufacture complex 

parts have resulted in an increased demand for metal molded products. The other materials used in 

the injection molding machine processes include rubber and ceramics. The rubber segment is an 

excellent process used for the high-volume production of small- to medium-sized parts, complex 

inserts with near-dimensional tolerances, and homogenous components. As this process can 

develop complicated elastomeric components using very low cycle times, it is gaining a rapid 

footing in various markets worldwide. 

 

Technology Insights 

 

Based on technology, the hydraulic segment led the market with the largest revenue share of 51.4% 

in 2023. The market is expected to grow as a result of factors like the ability to produce large 

quantities of parts, intricate parts for the automotive industry, lower initial costs, production of 

precise molds, higher wear and tear resistance of hydraulic parts, and widespread use in the 

automotive, marine, and aerospace industries where heavy force is required. 

 

The electric machine is energy-efficient, has a shorter start-up time, and the energy is only used 

during machine movements. These machines are digitally controlled so there is no need for 

supervision, resulting in a fast process. The electric segment has highly accurate control and 

monitoring systems, and the molding condition can be stabilized. The electric injection molding 

machine is digitally controlled, has high speed, and is more efficient during the whole production 

process because the independent motors control the entire process from injection to extruder to 

clamping and ejection. The machine allows less start-up scrap. The hybrid machine combines both 

hydraulic and electric injection molding machines. The machine uses a two-clamp system and 

allows for continuous adjustments by the servo pump. It also requires less maintenance and 

downtime as compared to hydraulic and electric molding systems. 

 

End-use Insights 

 

Based on end-use, the automotive segment led the market with the largest revenue share of 29.1% 

in 2023. Injection molding machines are used to make a wide range of vehicle components, 

including their exterior body panels, bumpers, dashboards, spoilers, and electrical housings. 

Several parts of automobiles are manufactured using plastic injection molding. These include 

instrumentation components, glove boxes, interior surfaces, dashboard faceplates, air vents, etc. 

Rapid growth in demand for automotive components has fueled global automobile production, 

resulting in high demand for injection-molded parts in the automotive industry. This, in turn, leads 

to the market growth. 
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The packaging industry has been growing significantly across the globe. Rising purchasing power, 

busier lifestyles, and subsequently rising demand for on-the-go packaged products are promoting 

growth in the packaging industry. Product packaging with functional, convenient, and eco-friendly 

products is likely to gain traction. Injection molding is widely used for manufacturing packaging 

products, thereby the market growth of the packaging industry is projected to have a positive 

impact on the market growth over the forecast period. 

 

Regional Insights 

 

The injection molding machine market in North America is projected to grow at the fastest CAGR of 

4.1% from 2024 to 2030. The region has witnessed significant manufacturing growth owing to the 

existing industrial dynamics and commodity abundance in its countries. Increasing demand for 

packaged food products, growing immigration, and ongoing technological advancements, such as 

automation, are some of the key factors responsible for the market growth in this region. 

 

U.S. Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The injection molding machine market in U.S. holds a significant revenue share of over 60% within 

the North America in 2023. The accessibility to cutting-edge technologies, a proficient workforce, 

advanced processing capabilities, and heightened research and development efforts have all 

contributed to the widespread adoption of injection molding machines in the U.S. 
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Asia Pacific Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The Asia Pacific dominated the injection molding machine market with the largest revenue share of 

39.4% in 2023. The market growth is driven by rising healthcare demand, rapid industrialization in 

emerging economies such as China, India, and Japan, and increasing demand for plastic molds in 

electric vehicles. In addition, the rapid growth of automotive and packaging industries in Asia 

Pacific is expected to boost the demand for injection molding machines over the forecast period. 

The injection molding machine market in China is projected to grow at the fastest CAGR of 5.5% 

from 2024 to 2030. Rising automotive production and increasing demand for lightweight automotive 

components are expected to propel market growth. 

 

The Japan injection molding machine market is projected to be driven by growing electronics 

industry and the presence of technology-driven companies in the country. 

 

The injection molding machine market in India is experiencing significant growth driven by 

expanding manufacturing sector, particularly in automotive, packaging, consumer goods, and 

healthcare industries. 

 

Europe Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The injection molding machine market in Europe is expected to grow at the fastest CAGR over the 

forecast period, owing to the rising demand for injection-molded components in both conventional 

and electric automobiles for different interior and exterior parts. Several manufacturers like 

ARBURG, Krauss Maffei Group, Milacron Holdings Corp., and Nissei Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd 

provides injection molding machines with hydraulic, hybrid, and electrical technologies. 

The Germany injection molding machine market holds a significant revenue share of over 34% 

within the Europe region. The market growth is attributed to highly skilled workforce, advanced 

research and development capabilities, and a strong industrial base. 

 

The injection molding machine market in France is experiencing growth propelled by the packaging 

industry's expanding demand for solutions catering to food, beverages, pharmaceuticals, and 

various consumer goods. 

 

Central & South America Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The injection molding machine market in Central & South America is expected to increase its 

automobile production in coming years, owing to favorable regulations implemented in the region to 

develop an electric vehicle network and reduce automobile emissions, as well as an increase 

witnessed in the sales of electric vehicles. This is anticipated to fuel the demand for injection 

molding machines in Central & South America in the coming years to make a variety of vehicle 

components. 

 

The Brazil injection molding machine market is projected to grow at the fastest CAGR of 5.7% from 

2024 to 2030. The flourishing automotive industry is expected to have a significant influence on the 

demand for injection molding machines in the country. 

 

Middle East & Africa Injection Molding Machine Market Trends 

 

The injection molding machine market in Middle East & Africa is expected to grow at the fastest 

CAGR over the forecast period. The global adoption of electric cars can be viewed as a business 

opportunity for injection molding machine manufacturers based in the Middle East & Africa as these 

machines are used to make different parts of electricity-driven trains, including their brakes, clutch 

systems, gears, seals, and magnets. The prevailing trend of replacing metals with plastics in 
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vehicles is also anticipated to fuel the demand for injection molding machines in the region over the 

forecast period, thereby contributing to the market growth in the Middle East & Africa. 

 

The Saudi Arabia injection molding machine market is projected to grow at the fastest CAGR of 4.9% 

from 2024 to 2030, driven by the packaging industry, construction, automotive, healthcare sectors, 

and government-led initiatives. 

 

Key Injection Molding Machine Company Insights 

 

The manufacturers adopt several strategies, including acquisitions, mergers, joint ventures, new 

product developments, and geographical expansions, to enhance market penetration and cater to 

the changing technological requirements from various applications such as automotive, consumer 

goods, packaging, and electronics. 

 

Key Injection Molding Machine Companies: 

 

The following are the leading companies in the injection molding machine market. These 

companies collectively hold the largest market share and dictate industry trends. 

• Arburg GmbH + Co KG 

• Haitian International Holdings Limited 

• Milacron 

• Nissei Plastic Industrial Co., Limited 

• Engel Austria GmbH 

• Sumitomo (SHI) Demag Plastics Machinery GmbH 

• Chen Hsong Holdings Limited 

• Toyo Machinery & Metal Co., Ltd 

• Husky Injection Molding Systems Ltd 

• Japan Steel Works Limited 

• KraussMaffei Group 

• UBE Machinery 

• Shibaura Machine Co. Ltd. 

• Wittmann Battenfeld 

 

Recent Developments 

 

• In December 2023, Husky Technologies opened a cutting-edge service center in Jeffersonville, 

Indiana. The facility provides a wide array of readily accessible OEM parts, demonstrating the 

company's dedication to its customers in the Americas region 

• In November 2023, ARBURG expanded its global footprint with the inauguration of a new 

subsidiary in Vietnam. The primary objective was to enhance accessibility to ARBURG products 

and services for customers in Vietnam. The establishment of this subsidiary reflects the 

company's commitment to providing products and services with increased convenience, 

efficiency, and dependability 

• In June 2023, Haitian International opened an advanced manufacturing facility in Mexico with the 

strategic objective of enhancing local production capacity, reducing delivery times, and 

delivering superior solutions to meet the technical needs of customers in North and South 

America 

 

Injection Molding Machine Market Report Scope 

 

Report Attribute Details 

Market size value in 

2024 
USD 16.69 billion 
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Revenue forecast in 

2030 
USD 22.03 billion 

Growth rate CAGR of 4.7% from 2024 to 2030 

Base year for 

estimation 
2023 

Historical data 2018 - 2022 

Forecast period 2024 - 2030 

Quantitative units Revenue in USD million/billion, and CAGR from 2024 to 2030 

Report coverage 
Revenue forecast, company market position analysis, 

competitive landscape, growth factors, and trends 

Segments covered Material, technology, end-use, region 

Regional scope 
North America; Europe; Asia Pacific; Central & South America; 

Middle East & Africa 

Country Scope 

U.S.; Canada; Mexico; Germany; France; Italy; Spain; 

Denmark; Austria; China; Japan; India; South Korea; Taiwan; 

Brazil; Argentina; UAE; Saudi Arabia. 

Key companies profiled 

Arburg GmbH + Co KG; Haitian International Holdings Limited; 

Milacron; Nissei Plastic Industrial Co. Limited; Engel Austria 

GmbH; Sumitomo (SHI) Demag Plastics Machinery GmbH; 

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited; Toyo Machinery & Metal Co., 

Ltd; Husky Injection Molding Systems Ltd; Japan Steel Works 

Limited; KraussMaffei Group; UBE Machinery; Shibaura 

Machine Co. Ltd.; Wittmann Battenfeld 

Customization scope 

Free report customization (equivalent up to 8 analyst’s 
working days) with purchase. Addition or alteration to country, 

regional & segment scope. 

Pricing and purchase 

options 

Avail customized purchase options to meet your exact 

research needs. Explore purchase options 

 

Global Injection Molding Machine Market Report Segmentation 

  

 

https://www.grandviewresearch.com/checkout/select-license/injection-molding-machine-market
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India Injection Molding Machine Market size was valued at USD 532.94 million in 2023, and is 

predicted to reach USD 888.15 million by 2030, with a CAGR of 7.2% from 2024 to 2030. An injection 

molding machine, also referred to as an injection molder, is a sophisticated industrial apparatus 

designed for the precise and controlled injection of molten plastic material into a mold cavity. It 

melts the plastic resin and forces it into a mold under high pressure. Injection molding machines 

are essential tools for producing various plastic parts and products across various sectors, 

including automotive, consumer goods, electronics, medical devices, and others. 

 

India's Manufacturing Landscape Fuels the Injection Molding Machine Market Growth 

 

India is witnessing a surge in adoption of injection molding machines, with various indicators 

pointing towards its accelerated growth. One of the key driving forces is the substantial investments 

being made by global market players in the Indian market. Global manufacturers are establishing 

their presence in India, setting up production facilities, and introducing advanced technologies. For 

example, in November 2022, Shibaura Machine India Pvt Ltd, the subsidiary of India’s Shibaura 
Machine, leading manufacturer of high-precision injection molding machine in the world, has 

announced its plans to invest in India, subsequently to expand its manufacturing capacity in the 

country. 

 

Moreover, partnerships and collaboration strategies by various local and global players have also 

emerged as significant drivers in India's injection molding machines industry. For instance, in 

December 2022, SOLIZE India Technologies, a subsidiary of SOLIZE Corporation, announced a 

partnership with Toray Engineering D Solutions to supply 3D injection molding machines for the 

Indian market.  

  

Rising Government Initiatives in India Boosts Injection Molding Market Growth 

 

The government initiatives aimed at promoting the plastic industry in India have provided a 

significant boost to the injection molding machines market. The Ministry of Chemicals and 

Fertilizers has implemented industry-friendly policies, including deregulating the petrochemical 

sector and authorizing 100% foreign direct investment (FDI) under the automatic route. These 

measures have facilitated fresh investments for plastic products, thereby indirectly increasing the 

need for injection molding machines. 

 

Emergence of Alternative Manufacturing Technologies Hinders the Market Growth 

 

Emergence of alternative manufacturing technologies, such as 3D printing and additive 

manufacturing also restrains growth of the injection molding machines market. These innovative 

methods offer unique advantages that are drawing attention away from conventional injection 

molding. Industries that prioritize customization, rapid prototyping, and waste reduction are 

increasingly turning to 3D printing and additive manufacturing. 

 

This diversion of demand impacts the injection molding machines market, particularly in sectors 

where these alternatives better suit the production requirements. As a result, injection molding 

machine manufacturers face the challenge of adapting to changing market dynamics and finding 

ways to remain competitive, as manufacturing technologies continue to evolve. 

 

Customized Products from Diverse Industries Offer a Prime Opportunity for Growth 

and Innovation 

 

The rise in demand for customization and personalized products is expected to create ample 

growth opportunities for the market in the future. This trend is becoming evident across various 
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industries, ranging from consumer goods to electronics. Injection molding machines are at the 

forefront of catering to this trend. 

 

Machines that possess the ability to quickly switch between different molds and efficiently produce 

small batches play a pivotal role in enabling manufacturers to respond to this demand for 

customization. These machines empower manufacturers to produce items that are tailor-made to 

suit specific requirements and preferences. Whether it's creating custom-designed consumer 

goods or producing electronics with unique features, injection molding machines equipped for such 

versatility are crucial for fulfilling consumers’ demand. 
 

Competitive Landscape 

 

The India injection molding machine industry includes several market players such as Hillenbrand, 

Inc., Sumitomo Heavy Industries, The Japan Steel Works, NISSEI, Ube Industries, Ltd., ENGEL, 

ARBURG, Haitian International, Husky Injection Molding Systems, and KraussMaffei Group. 

 

The India Injection Molding Machine Market Key Segments 

 

By Product Type     

• Plastic 

o Thermoplastics 

o Thermosets 

• Rubber 

• Metal  

o Powder 

o Liquid 

• Ceramic 

• Others 

By Machine Type 

• Hydraulic 

• All-electric 

• Hybrid  

By Clamping Force 

• Below 200 Tons 

• 200–500 Tons 

• Above 500 Tons 

By Business Type 

• New Sales 

• Aftersales 

By End-User 

• Automotive 

o Interior 

o Trim 

o Exterior 

o Others 

• Packaging 

o Caps and Closures 

o Thin-wall Containers 

o Lids 

o Personal Care 

o Containers 

o PET Preforms 

o Others 

• Electronics 

• Healthcare 
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• Consumer Goods 

• Toy Making 

• Building and Construction 

o Flooring 

o Windows 

o Doors 

o Others 

• Home Appliances 

• Others 

KEY PLAYERS 

• Hillenbrand, Inc. 

• Sumitomo Heavy Industries 

• The Japan Steel Works 

• NISSEI 

• Ube Industries, Ltd. 

• ENGEL 

• ARBURG 

• Haitian International 

• Husky Injection Molding Systems 

• KraussMaffei Group 

 

REPORT SCOPE AND SEGMENTATION: 

 

Parameters Details 

Market Size in 2023 USD 532.94 Million 

Revenue Forecast in 2030 USD 888.15 Million 

Growth Rate CAGR of 7.2% from 2024 to 2030 

Analysis Period 2023–2030 

Base Year Considered 2023 

Forecast Period 2024–2030 

Market Size Estimation Million (USD) 

Growth Factors 
• The growing government initiatives. 

• The flourishing manufacturing landscape. 

Companies Profiled 10 

Market Share Available for 10 companies 

Customization Scope 

Free customization (equivalent up to 80 working hours of 

analysts) after purchase. Addition or alteration to country, 

regional, and segment scope. 

Pricing and Purchase Options 
Avail customized purchase options to meet your exact 

research needs. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Organization implements to provide direction, increase efficiency and strengthen adherence to 

policies. Employees discharge their assigned responsibilities to increase efficiency in the execution 

of work. Financial Statement provide correct and reliable information maintaining proper accounts 

  

 For and on behalf of Chandni Machine Limited 

  

Sd/- 

 Jayesh Ramniklal Mehta 

Date: August 08, 2024 Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai DIN: 00193029      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To 

The Members 

Chandni Machines Limited 

(Formerly known as Chandni Machines Private Limited) 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  

 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Chandni Machines Limited ("the 

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement 

of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 

of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the 

standalone financial statements"). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit 

(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 

that date. 

 
 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 

report. 

 

Verification and measurement of Investments in Equity Instruments 

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has non-

current investments in quoted equity 

instruments amounting to Rs.197.41 lakhs 

(Refer Note no.5).   

 

This was determined as a key audit matter, as 

the verification and measurement of the 

investments at fair value at the year-end 

Our audit procedures related to the 

verification of equity instruments involves 

recognition, classification, measurement 

and reconciliation of demat holding 

statement with the books for the 

transactions during the year and the 

balance as at the year end and assessing 

the fair value on the basis of quoted price 
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involves significant judgment and estimate. 

 

 

 

on the last trading day on the recognized 

stock exchange.  

 

We have verified the quantitative details of 

investments in equity instruments at the 

end of the year with the demat holding 

statement. We have also verified demat 

transaction statements with broker’s bills, 
on test check basis, for the acquisition and 

disposal of equity instruments. We have 

assessed the classification of equity 

instruments in the financial statements. 

 

We have verified initial measurement and 

de-recognition on disposal of the equity 

instruments and assessed its fair value at 

the year end. 

 

Measurement and valuation of inventory  

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has inventory 

amounting to Rs.295.09 lakhs. (Refer Note no.9) 

This was determined a key audit matter, as the 

measurement and valuation of the inventory at 

the year-end involves significant judgement and 

estimate. 

 

The Company uses internal and external 

experts, to perform volumetric assessments, on 

basis of which the quantity for these inventories 

is estimated.  

Our audit procedures relating to the 

measurement of inventory included the 

following:   

(a) Understanding and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of 

controls over physical count and 

measurement of such inventory; (b) 

Evaluation of competency and capabilities 

of management’s experts; (c) Observing, 
physically or through remote access, 

inventory measurement and count 

procedures carried out by management, to 

ensure its appropriateness and 

completeness; (d) Obtaining and 

inspecting, inventory measurement and 

physical count results for such inventories, 

including assessing and evaluating the 

results of analysis performed by 

management in respect of differences 

between book and physical quantities. 

 

Based on the above procedures performed, 

we did not identify any material exceptions 

in the measurement of inventory quantities.  
 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor ‘s Report thereon  
 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Company’s annual report is 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
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the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take 

necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. 

 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 

Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss (including other comprehensive 

income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 

under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are 

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
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financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 

evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 

the standalone financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 

March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 

in its standalone financial statements as mentioned in Note no.49; 

 

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

 

iii. There has been no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the company. 

 

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company 

to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

  

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) hereinabove, contain any material 

misstatement. 
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v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 

for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 

our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered.  

 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 

April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for 

record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024. 

 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section          

197(16) as amended:  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the provisions of Section 

197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of corporate Affairs has not prescribed 

other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon 

by us. 

 

 

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No: 109681W 

 

Sd/- 

 

Ashish J. Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.111829 

 

Place: Mumbai  

Date:  29 May 2024 

ICAI UDIN No:  24111829BKCBVR8368 

 

  



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

47 

 

Annexure – A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ 
Section of our report of even date) 

 

[i] (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment including 

investment property and relevant details of Right of Use assets. 

 

  (B) The company does not have an intangible asset during the year. 

 

(b) These Property, Plant & Equipments including investment property and Right of Use 

assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during 

the year considering the size of the company and nature of its assets and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of all the immovable 

properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the company.  

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and investment property (including Right of 

Use assets) during the year. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been 

initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

[ii] (a)  As informed to us, the inventory in the company’s possession has been physically 
verified at reasonable intervals during the year by the management. Considering the size 

of the company and nature of its business, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of 

such verification by the management is appropriate. As informed to us, no discrepancies 

of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on verification 

between physical stock and book records.  

 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been 

sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 

security of current assets during the year. 

 

[iii] According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, the company has not granted advances in 

nature of loans or provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or any other parties during the year. However, the company has granted 

interest free loans to its employees, unsecured loans to companies and firms and made 

investments in companies during the year. The details of such loans granted are stated in 

sub-clause (a) below. 

  

(a) The company has not granted advances in nature of loans or stood guarantee or 

provided security to any other entity. However, the company has provided interest free 

loans to its employees and unsecured loans to companies and firms during the year.  

 

(A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not 

have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at any time during the year 

and hence, this sub-clause is not applicable. 
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(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

granted loans to parties other than subsidiaries, joint venture and associates as 

below:  

Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

Aggregate amount of loans granted during the year – 

Loans to Employees 

Loans to Others  

 

60,000 

5,62,42,880 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date – 

Loans to Employees 

Loans to Others 

 

14,851 

1,53,50,000 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the 

investments made and the terms and conditions of the loans given to its employees and 

other parties are prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s interest. 
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans granted by 

the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 

stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are 

generally been regular as per stipulation. 

  

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no overdue amount 

for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.  

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no loan granted 

falling due during the year and hence, this sub-clause is not applicable. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the term sheet 

of loans granted, the company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment.   

 

[iv]   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 

186 of the Act with respect to the investments made. Further, on the basis of our 

examination of the records, the company has not provided any guarantee or security as 

specified under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.   

 

 [v]   According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

accepted any deposits or any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the 

meaning of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and 

the Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

[vi]   As informed to us, maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central 

Government under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act for any of the 

product of the Company. 

 

[vii] (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities the undisputed 

statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, income tax, duty of 

customs and other statutory dues as applicable to it. There were no arrears of 

outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned 

for a period of more than six months from the date, they became payable. 

 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 

which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 
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[viii]    According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

surrendered or disclosed any unrecorded transactions in the books of account as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

  

[ix] (a) The company has not obtained any loans or borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, 

paragraphs 3 (ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

  (b) As informed to us, the company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank 

or financial institution or other lender. 

 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not availed 

any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix)(c) of the Order are not 

applicable. 

 

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised 

any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix)(d) of the 

Order are not applicable. 

  

 (e)     According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have 

any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix)(e) and 

3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

[x] (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company did not raise any 

money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 

during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not made 

any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 

(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

 

[xi] (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or 

on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.  

 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Sub-section 

(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government. 

 

 (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

received any whistle-blower complaints during the year.  

 

[xii]   According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a nidhi 

company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

[xiii]   According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with                                  

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions 

have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

 

[xiv] (a)  According to the information and explanations provided to us, the internal audit was 

conducted by an external practicing chartered accountant appointed by the Company 

who had issued the quarterly internal audit reports for the period covered by our audit. 

Based on our examination of such internal audit reports, in our opinion, the internal 
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audit conducted by the external practicing chartered accountant commensurate with 

the size and nature of its business.  

 (b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued by the external 

practicing chartered accountant till date, for the period under audit.  

 

 [xv]   According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered 

into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

[xvi] (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required 

to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

 

 (b)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year. 

 

 (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Core 

Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 

India. 

 

 (d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not in any 

group as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016.  

 

(xvii) The company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xix)    According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 

and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 

on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 

the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 

facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

 

(xx)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 135 

of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No: 109681W 

Sd/- 

Ashish J. Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.111829 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: 29 May 2024 

ICAI UDIN No:  24111829BKCBVR8368  
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ Section of 
our report of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

Opinion  

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone 

financial statements of Chandni Machines Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as of 
31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company 

for the year ended on that date.  

 

Considering the size of the company and nature of its business, in our opinion, the Company has, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with 

reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”). 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 

of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements.  

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No: 109681W 

 

Sd/- 

 

Ashish J. Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.111829 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: 29 May 2024  

ICAI UDIN No:  24111829BKCBVR8368 
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CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Chandni Machines Private Limited) 

 Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 

 

Particulars 
Note 

No. 
AS AT AS AT 

   31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

    Rs. Rs. 

I ASSETS       

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

  

(a) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 16,37,047  2,44,57,575  

(b) Investment Properties 3 (i) 2,21,66,226  -    

(c) Right of use assets 4 33,89,056  50,98,861  

  

(d) 
Financial Assets       

 (i) Investments 5 1,97,41,175  -    

 (ii) Other Financial Assets 6 1,53,47,622  3,41,119  

(d) Other non-current assets 7 -  51,000  

(e) Income-tax Assets (net) 8 5,30,936  3,33,776 

 

(2) CURRENT ASSETS       

(a) Inventories 9 2,95,09,866  5,18,99,335  

(b)  Financial Assets       

 (i) Trade receivables 10 3,27,48,524 13,14,323  

 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,57,11,874 22,65,463  

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 16,61,638 1,90,11,638  

 (iv) Loans 13 68,50,000  1,30,00,000 

 (v) Other financial assets 14 22,352  61,232  

(c) Other current assets 15 87,01,629  83,97,894  

  

Total Assets   16,80,17,944  12,62,32,216  

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       

   

(1) 
EQUITY        

(a) Equity Share capital 16 3,22,74,330  3,22,74,330  

(b) Other Equity 17 5,56,67,239  3,83,72,714  

  

 (2) LIABILITIES       

(A)  NON -CURRENT LIABILITIES       

 (a) Financial Liabilities       

(i) Lease liabilities 18 10,71,760  29,22,427  

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 4,39,482  4,10,873  

 (b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 20 6,22,381 12,86,082  

 (c) Provisions 21 4,79,820  3,03,087     
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(B) CURRENT LIABILITIES       

  

(a) 
Financial Liabilities       

(ia) Lease liabilities 22 25,12,990  22,08,074  

(ii) Trade payables 23     

(a) 
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & 

small enterprises 
  

     

-    

     

33,892  

(b) 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises & small enterprises 
  2,18,63,264  17,87,758  

(b) Other Current Liabilities 24 5,21,11,783  4,66,32,979  

(c) Current Income-tax 25 9,74,895  
     

-    

Total Equity and Liabilities   16,80,17,944  12,62,32,216  

 

 

As per our report of even date On behalf of the Board   

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP    

Chartered Accountants    

Firm Registration No. 109681W    

  J.R. Mehta R.C. Garg 

  Director Director 

  DIN 00193029 DIN 03346742 

       

       

Ashish J. Jain      

Partner Neelam Devani Bharat Shah 

Membership No. 111829 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

  Membership No. A47166 DIN 08066115 

    

Place: MUMBAI       Place: MUMBAI        

Date: 29-05-2024 Date: 29-05-2024  
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

  

  Particulars Note No. 2023-24 2022-23 

     Rs. Rs. 

  Income     

I Revenue From Operations 26 1,65,92,70,966  51,62,15,967  

II Other Income 27 87,04,224             35,06,470  

III Total Income (I + II)  1,66,79,75,190      51,97,22,437  

IV Expenses     

a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28     1,58,18,85,688        51,84,60,820  

b) 
Change in inventories of Stock-

in-Trade 
29            2,23,89,469       d (2,16,37,934) 

c) Employee benefits expenses 30               63,85,150             59,00,851  

d) Finance costs 31                 4,13,394               1,30,352  

e) Depreciation & amortization 3 & 4               38,23,930             20,90,940  

f) Other expenses 32            2,92,84,414             99,02,016  

  Total Expenses (IV)  1,64,41,82,045        51,48,47,045  

V  Profit before tax (III - IV)             2,37,93,145             48,75,392  

VI Tax expenses: 33    

  (i) Current tax                71,37,647               9,89,725  

  (ii) Tax of earlier years                     24,674                (28,381) 

  (iii) Deferred tax                (6,63,701)              4,18,544  

                  64,98,620             13,79,888  

VII Profit for the year (V - VI)             1,72,94,525             34,95,504  

VIII Other Comprehensive Income                            -                           -    

IX 
Total Comprehensive Income 

for the year (VII+VIII) 
            1,72,94,525             34,95,504  

X Earnings per equity share  34    

  (a) Basic                         5.36                      1.08  

  (b) Diluted                         5.36                      1.08  

As per our report of even date On behalf of the Board   

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP    

Chartered Accountants    

Firm Registration No. 109681W    

  Sd/- Sd/- 

  J.R. Mehta R.C. Garg 

  Director Director 

Sd/-  DIN 00193029 DIN 03346742 

     

  Sd/-  Sd/- 

Ashish J. Jain    

Partner Neelam Devani Bharat Shah 

Membership No. 111829 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

  Membership No. A47166 DIN 08066115 
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Statement of Cash Flow the period ended 31st March, 2024 

        

 Accounting Policy 

 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) for the period is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 

operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or 

financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 

Company are segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

 

Particulars 
 2023-24   2022-23  

 Rs   Rs  

       

  Cash flow from operating activities    

  Profit before Tax 
     

2,37,93,145  
                48,75,392  

  s    

  Depreciation & amortisation                  38,23,930                  20,90,940  

  Demerger Expenses Written off                              -                      2,27,717  

  Cancellation of Lease (Ind AS)                      (38,079)                  (1,10,575) 

  Changes in fair value of Investments                  31,23,132                              -    

  Allowance for Credit loss                  13,83,740                              -    

  Profit on sale of Investments                 (34,35,356)                             -    

  Securities Transaction Tax                    2,45,076                              -    

  Dividend Income                      (31,060)                             -    

  Net Rental Income                 (14,03,004)                             -    

  Interest Income                 (30,14,497)                  (6,63,989) 

  Interest Expenses                    3,84,785                    1,28,054  

  
Cash operating profit before working capital 

changes 

     

2,48,31,812  
                65,47,539  

  Adjustment for:    

  (Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables              (3,17,17,941)                 17,34,041  

  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                2,23,89,469  
     

(2,16,37,934) 

  (Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets                1,73,88,880               1,95,36,675  

  (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets                 (14,03,735)              2,60,35,863  

  (Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets                       51,000                     (51,000) 

  
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial 

Assets   
                (65,06,503)                      60,972  

  Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities                       28,609                    4,10,873  

  Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions                    1,76,733                       75,904  

  Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables                2,00,41,614                 (11,23,650) 

  Increase/(Decrease) in Non -Current Liabilities                  54,78,804  
     

(2,98,77,906) 

  Cash generated from operating activities                5,07,58,743                  17,11,377  

  
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 

  
                (63,84,586)                  (8,75,393) 

  Net Cash generated from operating activities 
     

4,43,74,157  
                  8,35,984  

 

  Cash flow from Investing activities    

  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments                      (76,542)                    (41,068) 

  Additions to Right to use asset                       (29,860)                      (4,885) 

  Payment for purchase of Investments (9,47,44,353) -    

  Proceeds from Sale of Investments                7,50,70,433                              -    

  Dividend Income                       31,060                              -    
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  Rental Income                  14,03,004                              -    

  Net cash generated/(used) from investing activities              (1,83,46,258)                    (45,953) 

  

  Cash flow from Financing activities    

  Payment of Lease liabilities                 (32,45,879)                (14,25,871) 

  Loans given (23,50,000)  (1,30,00,000) 

  Interest received                  30,14,497                    6,63,989  

  Net cash generated/(used) from financing activities                 (25,81,382)             (1,37,61,882) 

  

  Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                2,34,46,517              (1,29,71,851) 

 

  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

year 
22,65,357  1,52,37,208  

  Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,57,11,874  22,65,357  

 

As per our report of even date On behalf of the Board   

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP    

Chartered Accountants    

Firm Registration No. 109681W Sd/-  Sd/- 

  J.R. Mehta R.C. Garg 

  Director Director 

  DIN 00193029 DIN 03346742 

Sd/-     

  Sd/-  Sd/- 

Ashish J. Jain    

Partner Neelam Devani Bharat Shah 

Membership No. 111829 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

  Membership No. A47166 DIN 08066115 

    

Place: MUMBAI       Place: MUMBAI        

Date: 29-05-2024 Date: 29-05-2024  
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

 

A. Equity Share Capital 

(1) 2023-24 

Balance at the beginning of 

the Current reporting period 

 Changes in 

Equity Share 

Capital due 

to prior 

period errors  

Restated 

balance at the 

beginning of the 

current reporting 

period  

 Changes 

in Equity 

Share 

Capital 

during the 

current 

year  

Balance at the 

end of the 

current reporting 

period 

3,22,74,330 - 3,22,74,330 - 3,22,74,330 

     

(2) 2022-23     

Balance at the beginning of 

the Current reporting 

period 

 Changes in 

Equity Share 

Capital due 

to prior 

period errors  

Restated 

balance at the 

beginning of the 

current reporting 

period  

 Changes 

in Equity 

Share 

Capital 

during the 

current 

year  

Balance at the 

end of the 

current reporting 

period  

3,22,74,330  -    3,22,74,330  -    3,22,74,330  

     

B. Other Equity      

  

 Reserves and Surplus  

 Items of 

Other 

Comprehe

nsive 

Income  
 Total Other 

Equity  

 Capital 

Reserve  

 Retained 

Earnings  
  

          

As at 1st April 2022 41,02,941  3,07,74,269  -    3,48,77,210  

          

Profit for the year -    34,95,504  -    34,95,504  

Other Comprehensive 

income  
-      -      

Total comprehensive 

income for the year 
-    34,95,504  -    34,95,504  

          

As at 31st March 2023 41,02,941  3,42,69,773  -    3,83,72,714  

          

Profit for the year -    1,72,94,525  -    1,72,94,525  

Other Comprehensive 

income  
-      -      

Total comprehensive 

income for the year 
-    1,72,94,525  -    1,72,94,525  

As at 31st March 2024 41,02,941  5,15,64,298  -    5,56,67,239  
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NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Chandni Machines Ltd. is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India and 

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office 

of the Company is located at 108/109, T.V. Industrial Estate, 52, S.K. Ahire Marg, Worli, Mumbai 

400 030, India. Its shares are listed on BSE Ltd in India.  

 

The Company is primarily engaged in trading of engineering goods. 

The financial statements are approved by the company’s board of directors on 29-05-2024. 

 

2. Material Accounting Policy Information 

 

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 effective 01-

04-2023, the company is required to disclose ‘material accounting policy Information’ in lieu of 
the earlier requirement of disclosing ‘significant accounting policies’.  
 

All accounting policies followed by the company are in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and conform to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 as 

applicable.  

 

Specific disclosure of material accounting policy information where Ind AS permits options is 

made hereunder: 

 

The company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information, which involves 

exercising judgement and considering both quantitative and qualitative factors by taking into 

account not only the size and nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the 

transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more likely to impact the 

decisions of the users of the financial statements. 

 

 

a) Basis of preparation 

 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

 

These Financial Statement have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as a going concern on an accrual basis. 

 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 

following: 

 

• Equity Investments in entities are measured at fair value; 
•Certain financial assets & liabilities are measured at fair value; 

 

(iii) Use of estimates 

 

In preparing the Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the 

date of Financial Statements and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported 

period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates is 

recognized in the period the same is determined. 

 

b) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-

current classification.  

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
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• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.  

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

 

c) Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 

the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability 

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair 

value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 

observable inputs and minimizing the use of un-observable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 

• Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

• Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 

level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarizes accounting policy 

for a fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

 

d) Revenue recognition 

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of products and sale of services.  

 

Sale of Products and Services  

 

Revenues are recognized when the Company satisfies the performance obligation by 

transferring a promised product or service to a customer. A product is transferred when the 

customer obtains control of that product. To recognize revenues, company applies the 

following five step approach: (1) identify the contract with a customer, (2) identify the 

performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the 

transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues 

when a performance obligation is satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at 

the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade 

discounts and volume rebates. 
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Engineering Services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated 

reliably, revenue associated with the transaction shall be recognized by reference to the stage 

of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period 

 

Interest Income 

Revenue from Interest is recognized on accrual basis and determined by contractual rate of 

interest. 

 

Rental Income 

Rental income from the property leased under the leave and license agreement is recognized 

as income on a straight-line basis over the period of contractual lease terms. The respective 

leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. 

 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is 

being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or 

duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is measured net of indirect taxes, 

returns and discounts. 

 

Dividend Income 

Dividend income is stated at gross and is recognized when right to receive payment is 

established. 

 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is 

being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or 

duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is measured net of indirect taxes, 

returns and discounts. 

 

e) Transactions in Foreign Currency  

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the 

foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign 

currency at the date of the transaction. Premium on forward cover contracts, if any, in respect 

of imports is charged to profit & loss account over the period of contract. All monetary assets 

and liabilities as at the Balance sheet date, not covered by forward contracts are restated at 

the applicable exchange rates prevailing on that date. All exchange differences arising on 

transactions, not covered by forward contracts, are charged to Profit & Loss Account. 

 

f) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 

includes cash in hand, cash at bank and other short-term, highly liquid investments with 

original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

g) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

 

h) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

• Costs includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition.  

• Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 

i) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.  

Historical Cost represents direct expenses incurred on acquisition or construction of the 

assets and the share of indirect expenses relating to construction allocated in proportion to 

the direct cost involved. 
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Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided on ‘Straight Line Method’ based 
on useful life as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 

arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

j) Investment Properties 

Investment properties consist of commercial offices not required presently for own use or 

administrative purposes and which are leased to others to earn rentals and/or for capital 

appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction 

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

The Company, based on technical assessment made by management, depreciates the 

building over estimated useful lives of 60 years. The management believes that these 

estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the 

assets are likely to be used. 

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair 

value of investment property is disclosed in notes. Fair value is determined based on ready 

reckoner rate prescribed by the Government of Maharashtra for the purpose of levy of stamp 

duty. 

 

k) Lease 

As a Lessee  

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 

to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract 

involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic 

benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the 

right to direct the use of the asset.  

 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 

(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value 

leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease 

payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  

 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the 

end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is 

reasonably certain that they will be exercised.  

 

The right-of-use assets (“ROU”) are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 

commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They 

are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

 

Modification of the lease terms relating to period of lease and lease payments are recognized 

in accordance with Paragraphs 42 to 46B of Indian AS 116 and appropriate adjustments are 

made to ROU and Lease liability during the year of modification of lease. 

 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis 

over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets 

are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 

recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 

determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that 

are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 

determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.  
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future 

lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 

lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of 

domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to 

the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will 

exercise an extension or a termination option.  

 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 

payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 6.75%. 

 

As a lessor  

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in 

line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost 

increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their 

nature. 

 

l) Financial instruments 

 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the 

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the 

case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable transaction 

costs. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 

expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Classification 

• Cash and Cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. 

•  Debt Instruments 

The Company classifies its debt instruments as subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through profit or loss 

based on its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash 

flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets 

are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 

payments of principal and interest. Interest income from these financial assets is 

included as a part of the Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the 
effective interest rate method. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive 

Income if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for 

selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest. Movements in the carrying value are taken through Other 

Comprehensive Income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from 

Other Comprehensive Income to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on 

such financial assets is included as a part of the Company’s income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method. 

 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 

value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument that is subsequently 
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measured at FVTPL as well as interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

 

Equity Instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than the 

investment in subsidiaries which are measured at cost) at fair value. Dividends from 

such investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other income 

when the Company’s right to receive payment is established. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to 

receive cash flows from the financial asset. Where the Company has transferred an 

asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is 

derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be 

recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the 

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial 

liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable transaction costs. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit 

or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities 

are derecognised, and through the amortisation process. 

 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged 

or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from 

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is impaired. Ind AS-109 on Financial Instruments, requires expected 

credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. For trade receivables only, the 

Company recognises expected lifetime losses using the simplified approach permitted 

by Ind AS-109, from initial recognition of the receivables. For other financial assets (not 

being equity instruments or debt instruments measured subsequently at FVTPL) the 

expected credit losses are measured at the 12 month expected credit losses or an 

amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 

m) Trade and Other Payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to 

the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid 

within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities 

unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised 

initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method. 

 

n) Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of 
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respective assets during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 

for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 

time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

 

o) Employee Benefits 

(i) Short-term obligations 

The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) 

are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related services. The 

accruals for employee entitlements of benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave 

represent the amount which the Company has a present obligation to pay as a result of the 

employees' services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been 

calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at the Balance Sheet 

date. 

 

(ii) Post-employment obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 

Provident Fund  

The Company pays provident fund contributions to a fund administered by Government 

Provident Fund Authority. The Company has no further payment obligations once the 

contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution 

plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are 

due.  

 

Gratuity 

The Company has provided for gratuity in terms Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 to eligible 

employees considering that all employees retire on the Balance Sheet date. 

 

p) Tax expenses 

(i) Current tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 

‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never 

taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. 

 

(ii) Deferred Tax 

Deferred Income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences 

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 

separate Financial Statements. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax 

losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those 

temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the 

deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.  

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable 

right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 

the liability simultaneously. 

Current and Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates 

to items recognized in other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, the 

tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

 

q) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 

computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 

charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 

potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 

deriving basic earnings per share. 
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r) Impairment of assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the 

amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Assets that 

suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of 

each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is 

increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had 

there been no impairment loss. 

 

s) Segment Reporting  

Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker 

(‘CODM’) decides about resource allocation and reviews performance. Segment results 
that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 

those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total 

cost incurred during the period to acquire property and equipment and intangible assets 

including goodwill. 

 

t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or statutory obligation or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events and where it is probable that there will be 

outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of 

the obligation can be made. 

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from 

past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be 

measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 

obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those 

having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for. 

Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the 

Company are not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements. However, when 

the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a 

contingent asset, but it is recognized as an asset. 
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3  Property, Plant and Equipment  

 

  

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

 

As at Additions Deductions
/ 

Note 
As at Upto For the 

year 

Deductions
/ 

Note Upto As at As at 

Particulars 01/04/2023 Adjustments 

 31/03/202
4 31/03/2023 

Adjustment
s   31/03/2024 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

Office Premises 
2,41,29,760 

                     
-    

        
2,41,29,760  (*)                     

-    
          

15,81,725  
                  

-    
        

15,81,725  (*) 
                    

-    
                          

-    
       

2,25,48,035  
Furniture & 
Fixtures 

           
3,22,084  

               
2,900    

          
3,24,984  

               
86,398  

          
30,784  

                    
-      

          
1,17,182  

               
2,07,802  

            
2,35,686  

Office 
Equipments 

           
4,54,780  

             
22,642    

          
4,77,422  

            
3,42,860  

          
62,192  

               
4,543  (**) 

          
4,00,509  

                  
76,913  

            
1,11,920  

Computer 

              
49,200  

             
51,000    

          
1,00,200  

               
46,740  

            
5,747  

                    
-      

             
52,487  

                  
47,713  

                 
2,460  

Vehicles 

         
20,42,164  

                     
-              

20,42,164  
            

5,76,883  
       

2,41,143  
                    

-      
          

8,18,026  
             

12,24,138  
          

14,65,281  

Air Conditioners 

           
1,28,996  

                     
-      

          
1,28,996  

               
41,096  

          
10,017  

                    
-      

             
51,113  

                  
77,883  

               
87,900  

Electrical 
Fittings 

              
51,967  

                     
-      

             
51,967  

               
45,674  

            
3,695  

                    
-      

             
49,369  

                    
2,598  

                 
6,293  

  
Total 

      
2,71,78,951  

             
76,542  

        
2,41,29,760  

        
31,25,733  

          
27,21,376  

       
3,53,578  

        
15,86,268    

        
14,88,686  

             
16,37,047  

       
2,44,57,575  

Total Previous 
Year 

      
2,71,37,883  

             
41,068                         -         

2,71,78,951  
          

19,62,422  
       

7,58,954  
                    

-      
        

27,21,376  
          

2,44,57,575  
       

2,51,75,461  

 

Notes: 
(*) Adjustment represents Office premises transferred to Investment properties since the same is given on rental basis during the year. 

(**) Adjustment represents excess depreciation written back during the year. 
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   3.1  Investment Properties 

  

  

GROSS CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

 

DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

As at   

Deduction
s/   As at Upto  For the  

Deductio
ns/   Upto  As at As at 

Particulars 

01-04-
2023 Additions 

Adjustment
s   

31-03-
2024 

31-03-
2023 year 

Adjustme
nts   

31-03-
2024 31-03-2024 

31-03-
2023 

Office 
Premises 

                      
-    

                     
-    2,41,29,760    2,41,29,760 

                       
-    

       
3,81,809  

        
15,81,725    

        
19,63,534  

          
2,21,66,226  

                       
-    

Total 
                      

-    
                     

-    
        

2,41,29,760    
    

2,41,29,760  
                       

-    
       

3,81,809  
        

15,81,725    
        

19,63,534  
          

2,21,66,226  
                       

-    
Total Previous 
Year 

                      
-    

                     
-                           -      

                    
-    

                       
-    

                  
-    

                    
-      

                    
-    

                          
-    

                       
-    

 

Notes:  
a. Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties 

  2023-24 2022-23 

 
Rental income derived from Investment properties       15,08,405            1,65,179  

 
Direct operating expenses generating rental incomes        1,35,877                 6,013  

 Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses      13,72,528            1,59,167  

 
Less: Depreciation        3,81,809                      -    

 
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses        9,90,719            1,59,167  

  

b. The Company’s investment properties consist of office premises which was let out during the year. 
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c. Fair value 

 Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties: 

 Particulars Valuation technique Fair Value Hierarchy 
Fair Value 

   (See Note below) (See Note below) 31-03-2024   31-03-2023 

 Office Premises 

Stamp Duty Reckoner 
rate Level 2         2,65,00,000                        -    

 

The fair value is not based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under Rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 
2017. However, the above valuation of the investment properties are in accordance with the Ready Reckoner rates prescribed by the Government of 
Maharashtra for the purpose of levying stamp duty.  The management has referred to the publications and government website for Ready Reckoner 
rates. The adjustments related to floors, lifts and other factors are not considered for valuation of office Premises. 'Since the valuation is based on 
the published Ready Reckoner rates, the company has classified the same under Level 2. 
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4  RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 

 Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

 Balance at the beginning            50,98,861           26,94,688  

 Additions            26,28,208           54,49,261  

 Deletion          12,44,927           17,13,102  

 Amortisation            30,93,086           13,31,986  

 Balance at the year end            33,89,056           50,98,861  

 

The amortisation on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

5 NON- CURRENT - INVESTMENTS 

   31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

 
 

Face 

Value 
Nos. Amount   

  Investments in Equity Instruments - 

(i)  Others (At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss): 

  Quoted          

  
          

  
GAIL (INDIA) LTD  

                

10  

     

2,500  

     

4,52,875  

            

-    

                

-    

  

GMR AIRPORTS INFRASTRUCTURE 

LTD  

                

1  

     

35,000  

     

28,56,700  

            

-    

                

-    

  
HFCL LTD 

                

1  

     

2,500  

     

2,29,750  

            

-    

                

-    

  
HLV LTD 

                

2  

     

20,000  

     

5,22,000  

            

-    

                

-    

  
HUDCO LTD 

                

10  

     

5,000  

     

9,36,500  

            

-    

                

-    

  
INFIBEAM AVENUES LTD 

                

1  

     

50,000  

     

17,06,000  

            

-    

                

-    

  

MOTHERSON SUMI WIRING INDIA 

LTD  

                

1  

     

10,000  

     

6,59,700  

            

-    

                

-    

  
NHPC LTD  

                

10  

     

5,000  

     

4,48,150  

            

-    

                

-    

  
NTPC LTD  

                

10  

     

10,000  

     

33,59,500  

            

-    

                

-    

  

RAILTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA 

LTD  

                

10  

     

5,000  

     

18,18,500  

            

-    

                

-    

  
REC LTD   

                

10  

     

3,000  

     

13,52,400  

            

-    

                

-    

  
RELIANCE POWER LTD 

                

10  

     

50,000  

     

14,11,500  

            

-    

                

-    

  

TATA TELESERVICES 

(MAHARASHTRA) LTD  

                

10  

     

10,000  

     

7,39,600  

            

-    

                

-    

  
YES BANK LTD  

                

2  

     

1,40,000  

     

32,48,000  

            

-    

                

-    

       1,97,41,175    - 

 Aggregate value of quoted investments (at fair value) 1,97,41,175   

 Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,97,41,175   

 

6 OTHER NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 (Unsecured considered good)    

 Security Deposits - Considered good  3,47,622  3,26,268  
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 Bank Deposits with more than 12 months 

maturity 
 65,00,000                           -    

 Loans to Related party (Refer note no. 46)  85,00,000                           -    

 Loan to Employees - Considered good                           -    14,851  

   1,53,47,622  3,41,119  

 

Unsecured loan given to related party at interest rate of 9% p.a. repayable in 5 equated yearly 

instalments of Rs. 70 lakhs commencing from June 2024. Final instalment is due on or before 

June, 2028. Interest payment is on annual basis. The Company has recovered substantial 

amount of loan during the year. 

7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 (Unsecured considered good)    

 Capital Advances                           -    51,000  

                            -    51,000  

   
  

8 INCOME TAX ASSETS (net) 

   
  

 Advance Tax / TDS less provisions  5,30,936  3,33,776  

   
5,30,936  3,33,776  

   
  

9 INVENTORIES 

  
(As taken, valued and certified by the 

management) 
   

 Stock-in-trade   2,95,09,866  5,18,99,335  

   2,95,09,866  5,18,99,335  

     

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES  

 Trade Receivables   
  

 Unsecured, Considered good  3,27,48,524  13,14,323  

     

 Credit Impaired  17,72,680  14,88,940  

 Less:- Allowance for credit loss  17,72,680  14,88,940  

   3,27,48,524  13,14,323  

     

 Due from the Company in which director is interested (Refer 

note no. 46) 
2,00,00,000                           -    

 
  

  

 

10.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule - 

   

  

  
Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - As at 

31-03-2024 

Less than 

6 months 

6 months - 

1 year 

1-2    

years 

2-3    

years 

More 

than 3 

years 

Total 

i. Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - 

considered good 

          

1,27,48,524  

          

2,00,00,000  

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

         

3,27,48,524  

ii

. 

Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - which 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    
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have significant 

increase in credit risk 

iii

. 

Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - credit 

impaired 

                          

-    

                          

-    

         

2,83,740  

                 

-    

        

14,88,940  

            

17,72,680  

iv

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - 

considered good 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

v

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - which 

have significant 

increase in credit risk 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

vi

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - credit 

impaired 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

    

    

1,27,48,524  

     

2,00,00,000  

      

2,83,740  

     

-    

   

14,88,940  

     

3,45,21,204  

  

Less : Allowances for 

credit loss 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

     

14,88,940  

     

17,72,680  

  Total :-  

          

1,27,48,524  

          

2,00,00,000  

         

2,83,740  

                 

-    

                     

-    

         

3,27,48,524  
 

  

  
Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - As at 

31-03-2023 

Less than 

6 months 

6 months - 

1 year 

1-2    

years 

2-3    

years 

More 

than 3 

years 

Total 

i. Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - 

considered good 

             

13,14,323  

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

            

13,14,323  

ii

. 

Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - which 

have significant 

increase in credit risk 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

iii

. 

Undisputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - credit 

impaired 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

        

14,88,940  

            

14,88,940  

iv

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - 

considered good 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

v

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - which 

have significant 

increase in credit risk 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

vi

. 

Disputed Trade 

receivables 

(unsecured) - credit 

impaired 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

                     

-    

                         

-    

  Total :-  

             

13,14,323  

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

        

14,88,940  

            

28,03,263  

  

Less : Allowances for 

credit loss 

                          

-    

                          

-    

                    

-    

                 

-    

        

14,88,940  

            

14,88,940  

  Total :-                                                                                                               
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13,14,323  -    -    -    -    13,14,323  

 

11 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 Balances with banks     

 -in current accounts  2,47,59,285  2,52,969  

   -Bank deposits with less than 3 months 

maturity 
 5,00,000  7,00,000  

 Cash on hand   4,52,589  13,12,494  

   2,57,11,874  22,65,463  

   
 

 

12 OTHER BANK BALANCES 

 Bank deposits with maturity of more than 3 

months but less than 12 months 
 16,61,638  1,90,11,638  

   16,61,638  1,90,11,638  

   
 

 

13 LOANS 

 Current Loans to Others  68,50,000  1,30,00,000  

   68,50,000  1,30,00,000  

     

14 OTHER  CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 (Unsecured, considered good)    

 Loans to employees  14,852  57,232  

 Deposits  7,500  4,000  

   22,352  61,232  

 

15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: 

 Unsecured, Considered Good  
 

 

 Balances with Govt. Authorities  6,58,931  5,97,048  

 Claims & Other Receivables  12,06,938  42,97,892  

 Advances to vendors  67,99,558  34,20,917  

 Prepaid Expenses  36,202  82,036  

   87,01,629  83,97,894 

 Unsecured, Considered Doubtful    

 Advances to vendors/others  14,07,255  3,07,255  

 Less:- Allowance for doubtful advances  14,07,255  3,07,255  

                            -                             -    

   87,01,629  83,97,894  

 

16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

(a) AUTHORISED:  
 

 

 32,50,000 (32,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,25,00,000  3,25,00,000  

   3,25,00,000  3,25,00,000  

     

(b) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID    

 32,27,433 (32,27,433) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,22,74,330  3,22,74,330  

   3,22,74,330  3,22,74,330  
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(c) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:  

 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at the beginning of the year 32,27,433 32,27,433 

 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at the end of the year 32,27,433 32,27,433 

   
 

 

(d) The Company has only one class of equity shares. These shares rank pari passu in all 

respects including voting rights, entitlement to dividend and distribution of assets of the 

Company in the event of liquidation. 

(e) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

 Name of the Shareholder No of Shares  % 
No of 

Shares  
% 

 Mr. Jayesh R. Mehta 8,38,418 25.98 8,38,418 25.98 

 Mrs. Amita J. Mehta 5,51,925 17.10 5,51,925 17.10 

 Mr. Chetan K. Mehta                      -    
                     

-    
2,77,585 8.60 

 Mrs. Hetal C. Mehta                      -    
                     

-    
58,656 1.82 

(f) 
Shares held by promoters at the end of the 

year 

As at 31-03-2024 

 

Name of Promoter No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares 

% change 

during the 

year 

 Jayesh R. Mehta 8,38,418  25.98% 
     

-    

 Amita J. Mehta 5,51,925  17.10% 
     

-    

 Prerna Karan Khanna 13,400  0.42% 
     

-    

 Chandni Chintan Bhagat 12,500 0.39% 
     

-    

 J.R. Auto Components Pvt Ltd 84,442  2.62% 
     

-    
 Total 15,00,685 46.50%   

 

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the 

year 

As at 31-03-2023 

 

Name of Promoter No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares 

% change 

during the 

year 

 Jayesh R. Mehta 8,38,418  25.98% 
     

-    

 Amita J. Mehta 5,51,925  17.10% 
     

-    

 Prerna Karan Khanna 13,400  0.42% 
     

-    

 Chandni Chintan Bhagat 12,500  0.39% 
     

-    

 J.R. Auto Components Pvt Ltd 84,442  2.62% 
     

-    

 Total 15,00,685 46.50%   

     

17 OTHER EQUITY 

 Reserves & Surplus  
 

 

a) Capital Reserve  
 

 

 Opening Balance  41,02,941  41,02,941  

 Closing Balance  41,02,941  41,02,941  
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b)  Retained Earnings  
 

 

 Opening Balance  
3,42,69,773  3,07,74,269  

 Add: Profit for the year  1,72,94,525  34,95,504  

 Closing Balance  5,15,64,298  3,42,69,773  

   5,56,67,239  3,83,72,714  

 

18 NON-CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES 

 Lease Liabilities  10,71,760  29,22,427  

   10,71,760  29,22,427  

     

(a) The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March  
 Balance as at beginning  51,30,501  28,07,512  

 Additions   25,98,348  54,44,376  

 Finance cost accrued during the period   3,84,785  1,28,054  

 Deletions   (12,83,006)  (18,23,570) 

 Payment of lease liabilities    (32,45,879)  (14,25,871) 

 Balance at the end  35,84,750  51,30,501  

 

(b) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities 
 Contractual undiscounted cash flows  

  
 Less than one year  26,27,288  24,77,879  

 One to five years  11,18,410  30,61,206  

 More than five years  -    -    

 Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31st 

March 
 37,45,698  55,39,085  

 Lease liabilities included in the Statement of 

Financial position as at 31st March 

 35,84,750  51,30,501  

 Current  25,12,990  22,08,074  

 Non-Current  10,71,760  29,22,427  

 

(c) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as 

the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and 

when they fall due. 

 

19 OTHER NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 

Security Deposit measured at amortised costs  4,39,482  4,10,873  
 

  4,39,482  4,10,873  
 

    

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS) (NET) 

 
  

  

 Deferred tax Liabilities:    

 Timing Difference on Account of Depreciation  21,51,172  18,83,287  

   21,51,172  18,83,287  

 Deferred Tax Assets:    

 Expenses allowable on payment basis under Tax Laws 1,92,536  1,45,139  

 Allowances for doubtful debts /advances    8,00,326  4,52,066  

 Others  5,35,929                           -    

   15,28,792  5,97,205  

 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)  6,22,381  12,86,082  
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21 PROVISIONS 

 For Gratuity  4,79,820  3,03,087  

   4,79,820  3,03,087  

     

22 CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES 

 Lease Liabilities (Refer note No. 16)  25,12,990  22,08,074  

   25,12,990  22,08,074  

     

23 TRADE PAYABLES  

 Outstanding dues to micro enterprises & small 

enterprises 
                          -    33,892  

 
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises & small enterprises 
 2,18,63,264  17,87,758  

   2,18,63,264  18,21,650  

 (Refer note No. 38 for additional information under the MSMED Act, 2006) 

 

23.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule - 

   

  Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - As at 31-03-2024 

Less than 1 year 1-2    years 2-3    years 
More than 3 

years 
Total 

i. MSME 
                            -    

                          

-    

                       

-    
                              -                      -    

ii. Others 2,18,20,781 - - 42,483 2,18,63,264 

iii. Disputed 

Dues - 

MSME 

- - - - - 

iv. Disputed 

Dues - 

Others 

- - - - - 

  Total :-  2,18,20,781 - - 42,483 2,18,63,264 
       

  
Particular

s 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - As at 31-03-2023 

Less than 1 year 1-2    years 2-3    years 
More than 3 

years 
Total 

i. MSME - - - - - 

ii. Others 17,79,167 - - 42,483 18,21,650 

iii. Disputed 

Dues - 

MSME 

- - - - - 

iv. Disputed 

Dues - 

Others 

- - - - - 

  Total :-  17,79,167 - - 42,483 18,21,650 

 

24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 Advances received from customers           5,06,99,451           4,64,22,742  

 Statutory Dues payable              13,53,923                1,21,352  

 Others                   58,409                   88,885  

            5,21,11,783           4,66,32,979  
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25 CURRENT INCOME-TAX 

 Income-tax Provisions                9,74,895                           -    

                 9,74,895                           -    

 

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

 Sales of Products       1,65,92,70,966         51,07,49,967  

 Sales of Services                            -                54,66,000  

   1,65,92,70,966  51,62,15,967  

     

26.1  PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS 

 Engineering Goods  1,65,92,70,966  51,06,96,893  

 Others                           -                     53,074  

   1,65,92,70,966  51,07,49,967  

     

   
  

26.2  PARTICULARS OF SALE OF SERVICES 

 Engineering Services                           -                54,66,000  

                            -                54,66,000  

     

27 OTHER INCOME: 

 Interest Income:    

 on Bank Fixed Deposits                4,80,742              15,27,069  

 on Loans              30,14,497                6,63,989  

 on Others                           -                     22,872  

 on Unwinding                   24,122                   25,696  

 Foreign Exchange gains - (Net)                   20,317                2,65,764  

 Compensation received                           -                  5,28,589  

 Profit on sale of FVTPL Investments              34,35,356                           -    

 Rent Income              15,38,881                1,67,719  

 Dividend on FVTPL Investments                   31,060                           -    

 Miscellaneous Income                   38,079                1,11,560  

 Sundry Balance W/off                1,21,171                1,93,211  

               87,04,224              35,06,470  

 
  

  

28 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 

 Engineering Goods  1,58,18,85,688  51,84,60,820  

   1,58,18,85,688  51,84,60,820  

     

29 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE  

 Opening Stock     

   Stock-in-trade           5,18,99,335           3,02,61,401  

     

 Less: Closing Stock:    

     Stock-in-trade (including goods-in-transit)           2,95,09,866  5,18,99,335  
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   2,23,89,469   (2,16,37,934) 

    ` 

     

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

 Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc.               57,89,849              56,34,380  

 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds                   60,264                   68,146  

 Employees Welfare Expenses                5,35,037                1,98,325  

   63,85,150 59,00,851 

 

31 FINANCE COSTS 

 Interest on lease liabilities                3,84,785                1,28,054  

 Interest on Financial Liability (SD)                   28,609                     2,298  

                 4,13,394                1,30,352  

32 OTHER EXPENSES 

 Bank Charges                     8,278                     1,078  

 Clearing, Forwarding & Freight                   95,000                1,95,300  

 Commission on sales           1,77,23,046              38,96,241  

 Contract labour charges                           -                  6,08,000  

 Travelling & Conveyance              19,63,847              13,51,104  

 Telephone, Postage & Telegram                   22,295                   52,709  

 Electricity Charges                   84,379                   29,381  

 Sales Promotion & Advertisement                8,77,169                4,73,685  

 Insurance                   29,804                   30,479  

 Legal & Professional Charges                4,81,600                2,09,600  

 Rent              11,80,844                9,92,772  

 Rates & taxes                1,35,877                   55,500  

 Repairs - Others                   94,004                3,76,461  

 General Expenses              14,09,420              11,72,648  

 GST Expenses/Interest                 2,01,403                     3,842  

 Payment to Auditors:    

  -  As Auditor                                                 
 

              2,25,500                2,25,500  

 Securities Transaction Tax                2,45,076                           -    

 Changes in Fair Market Value              31,23,132                           -    

 Allowance for Credit loss              13,83,740                           -    

 Demerger Expenses w/off.                           -                  2,27,717  

 
           2,92,84,414              99,02,016  

 

33 TAX EXPENSE 

(a) Income tax 

 Tax on profits for the year  

     

71,37,647  
9,89,725  

 Tax for prior year  

     

24,674  
 (28,381) 

 Total income tax  71,62,321  9,61,344  

   
  

(b) Deferred tax 

 Decrease / (Increase) in deferred tax assets   (9,31,587) 1,06,907  

 (Decrease) / Increase in deferred tax liabilities       3,11,636  
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2,67,885  

 Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)   (6,63,702) 4,18,543  

 Total tax expense  64,98,620  13,79,887  

   
  

(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate: 

 Profit before income tax expenses  2,37,93,145  48,75,392  

   
  

 

Tax at the current tax rate (@ 25.168%) 

 
59,88,259  12,27,039  

 

Tax effect of expenses which are not 

deductible:  
3,53,879  1,98,973  

 

Difference in tax on change in FVTPL 

Investments   
2,50,100  -    

 
Tax effect due to Ind AS adjustments 

 
40,614   (17,743)  

Tax for prior year 

 
24,674   (28,381)  

Difference in tax on capital loss/(gain) on 

securities 
  (1,58,908) -    

 Total tax expenses   64,98,620  13,79,887  

   
  

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE:- BASIC AND DILUTED 

    
  

 a) Profit after tax  Rs.   1,72,94,525  34,95,504  

 
b) 

Weighted Average Number of Equity 

shares outstanding 
 Nos.  32,27,433  32,27,433  

 c) The nominal value per Equity Share  Rs.  10  10  

 d) Earnings per Share –Basic & Diluted  Rs.  5.36  1.08  

    
  

 

35 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

 Financial instruments by category 

   As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023 

   

FVTPL 
Amortised 

cost 
FVTPL 

Amortised 

cost 

 Financial Assets      

 Investments      

 Equity instrument   1,97,41,175                      -                       -                          -    

 Trade receivables                   -        3,27,48,524                     -              13,14,323  

 Cash & Cash Equivalents                   -        2,57,11,874                     -              22,65,463  

 Non-Current Bank Deposits                   -           65,00,000                     -                          -    

 Other Bank Balances                   -           16,61,638                     -           1,90,11,638  

 Security Deposits                    -             3,55,122                     -                3,30,268  

 Loans to Employees                   -                14,852                     -                   72,083  

 Loans to Related Party         85,00,000                         -    

 Loans                    -           68,50,000                     -           1,30,00,000  

 Total Financial Assets   1,97,41,175      8,23,42,009                     -           3,59,93,775  

        

  
     

 Trade payables                   -        2,18,63,264                     -              18,21,650  

 Lease Liabilities                   -           35,84,750                     -              51,30,501  

 Security Deposits                   -             4,39,482                     -                4,10,873  

 Total Financial Liability                   -        2,58,87,496                     -              73,63,024  
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 

(i) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and 

liabilities as at 31-03-2024: 

 

 Fair value measurement using     

  

  

  

Date of 

valuation 

Quoted 

price in 

active 

market 

level(1) 

Significant 

observable 

inputs 

level(2) 

Significant 

unobserva

ble inputs 

level(3) 

Total 

  

Financial Assets   

Equity instruments measured 

at FVTPL 

31-03-

2024 

  

1,97,41,175  
      

1,97,41,175  

 

Financial Assets at amortised cost  

 

Trade Receivables 

31-03-

2024  
3,27,48,524   3,27,48,524  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

31-03-

2024  
2,57,11,874   2,57,11,874  

Other Bank Balances 

31-03-

2024  
16,61,638   16,61,638  

Security Deposits 

31-03-

2024  
3,55,122   3,55,122  

Loans to Employees 

31-03-

2024  
14,852   14,852  

Loans to Related Party 

31-03-

2024  
85,00,000   85,00,000  

Loans  

31-03-

2024  
68,50,000   68,50,000  

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost   

Trade payable 

31-03-

2024  
2,18,63,264   2,18,63,264  

Lease Liabilities 

31-03-

2024  
35,84,750   35,84,750  

Security Deposits 

  

31-03-

2024   
4,39,482    4,39,482  

 
(ii) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and 

liabilities as at 31-03-2023: 

Fair value measurement using 

  

  

  

Date of 

valuatio

n 

Quoted 

price in 

active 

market 

level (1) 

Significant 

observable 

inputs 

level (2) 

Significant 

unobserva

ble inputs 

level (3) 

Total 

  

  

Financial Assets at amortised cost  

Trade Receivables 

31-03-

2023 
         13,14,323        

13,14,323  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

31-03-

2023 
         22,65,463        

22,65,463  

Other Bank Balances 

31-03-

2023 
      1,90,11,638        

1,90,11,638  

Security Deposits 

31-03-

2023 
           3,30,268        

3,30,268  
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Loans to Employees 

31-03-

2023 
              72,083        

72,083  

Loans  

31-03-

2023 
      1,30,00,000        

1,30,00,000  

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 

Trade payable 

31-03-

2023 
         18,21,650        

18,21,650  

Lease Liabilities 

31-03-

2023 
         51,30,501        

51,30,501  

Security Deposits 

  

31-03-

2023 
            4,10,873    

     

4,10,873  

 
 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using quoted prices. This 

includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments 

which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Fair value of mutual funds is determined based on the closing NAV.  

Level 2: The fair value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined 

using valuation techniques which maximizes the use of observable market data and rely as little as 

possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.  
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 

instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, security deposits 

included in level 3. 

 

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Company’s activities exposes it to market risks (including currency risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risk), liquidity risk, credit risk and other risks. This note explains the sources 

of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk : 

  

 

The Company’s risk management is carried out by chief financial officer under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's chief financial officer identifies, 

evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating 
units. The board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering 

specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of non-

derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity The risk management 

includes identification, evaluation and identifying the best possible option to reduce such 

risk. The Board has taken all necessary actions to mitigate the risks identified on the basis of 

the information and situation present. 

  

(A) Market risk 

 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: 

currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market 

risk include borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables, loans and non-derivative financial 

instruments.  
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(i)  Foreign currency risk 

  

 

Foreign currency risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets or 

liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency (INR). 
This is closely monitored by the Management to decide on the requirement of hedging. 

 

The position of foreign currency exposure to the Company as at the end of the year 

expressed in INR are as follows :  

 

31-03-

2024 

31-03-

2023 

31-03-

2024 

31-03-

2023 

31-03-

2024 31-03-2023 

Currency 

Asset Asset Liability Liability Net 

Receivable/ 

Net 

Receivable/ 

  

  

  

(Receivab

le) 

(Receivabl

e) 

(Payable) (Payable) (Payable) (Payable) 

Euro 72,028  71,518  -    -    72,028  71,518  

GBP 16,608  16,002  -    -    16,608  16,002  

USD 20,846  20,545  -    -    20,846  20,545  

         

Exposure to foreign 

currency risk 
1,09,482  1,08,065  

     

-    

     

-    
1,09,482  1,08,065  

 
 

Sensitivity 

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency 

denominated financial instruments  

 

Impact on profit Increase/(Decrease) 

 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023 

EURO sensitivity         

INR/EURO Increases by 5%                   3,601                       3,576  

INR/EURO Decreases by 5%                (3,601)                     (3,576) 

     

GBP sensitivity    

INR/EURO Increases by 5%                      830                          800  

INR/EURO Decreases by 5%                   (830)                        (800) 

     

USD sensitivity    

INR/EURO Increases by 5%                   1,042                       1,027  

INR/EURO Decreases by 5%                (1,042)                     (1,027) 

 
 

(ii)  Interest rate risk 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has given loans at fixed 

rate of interest and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk. 

  

(B) Credit risk 

 

Credit risk arises when a counter party defaults on contractual obligations resulting in 

financial loss to the Company. In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaulters, 

the Company has an ongoing credit evaluation process in respect of customers who are 

allowed credit period. In respect of walk-in customers the Company does not allow any credit 

period and therefore, is not exposed to any credit risk.In general, it is presumed that credit risk 

has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 90 days past 

due. 
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(C)  Liquidity risk 

  

 

The Company has sufficient cash and cash equivalents and other liquid current financial 

assets which can be easily realised in cash or cash equivalents in short time .Therefore there 

is no significant liquidity risk. 

  

 Maturities of Financial Liabilities 

  

 

The tables below analyse the Company’s Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 

 

 

Not later than 1 

year 

Between 1 to 5 

years 

Later than 5 

years 
Total 

       

31-03-2024      

Non-derivatives      

Trade Payables           2,18,63,264                         -                           -            2,18,63,264  

Lease Liabilities             25,12,990            10,71,760                         -               35,84,750  

Security Deposit                         -                4,39,482                         -                 4,39,482  

           2,43,76,254            15,11,242                         -            2,58,87,496  

31-03-2023     

Non-derivatives     

Trade Payables              18,21,650                         -                           -               18,21,650  

Lease Liabilities             22,08,074            29,22,427              51,30,501  

Security Deposit              4,10,873                4,10,873  

              40,29,724            33,33,300                         -               73,63,024  

         

 

38 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

  

 

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, equity includes issued equity capital 
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary 

objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholders value. The 

Company’s Capital Management objectives are to  maintain equity including all reserves to 
protect economic viability and to finance any growth opportunities that may be available in 

future so as to maximize shareholders’ value.  The Company is monitoring capital using debt 
equity ratio as its base, which is debt to equity.  The Company’s policy is to keep debt equity 

ratio below one and infuse capital if and when it is required through issue of new shares and/or 

better operational results and efficient working capital management. Presently the Company 

does not have any debt. 

 

39 MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) 

 

 Particulars 

As on 31-

03-2022 

Charge/(C

redit) to 

Statement 

of P&L 

Charge

/ 

(Credit

) to 

OCI 

As on 

31-03-

2023 

Charge/(

Credit) to 

Statemen

t of P&L 

Charg

e/ 

(Credi

t) to 

OCI 

As on 31-

03-2024 

2022-23 
2022-

23 
2023-24 

2023-

24 

                 

 

Deferred Tax 

Liability –               

 

Timing 

difference on 

account of 

     

15,71,651  

     

3,11,636  

     

-    

    

18,83,287  

     

2,67,885  

     

-    

     

21,51,172  



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

84 

 

depreciation 

                 

   15,71,651  3,11,636  -    18,83,287  2,67,885  -    21,51,172  

                 

 

Deferred Tax 

Assets – 
              

 

Expenses 

allowable on 

payment basis 

under Tax 

Laws 

     

1,18,667  

     

(26,472) 

     

-    

     

1,45,139  

     

(47,397) 

     

-    

     

1,92,536  

 

Allowance for 

doubtful debts 

/ advances 

5,85,446  1,33,380  
     

-    
4,52,066  (3,48,260) -    8,00,326  

 Others -    -      -    (5,35,929)   5,35,929  

   7,04,113  1,06,908  -    5,97,205  (9,31,586) -    15,28,792  

     -        -    -      

 

Net Deferred 

Tax  Liabilities 
8,67,538  4,18,544  -    12,86,082  (6,63,701) -    6,22,381  

 

40. Additional information in terms of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 in respect of amount outstanding to Micro and Small Enterprises 

based on the information available with the Company are given below :- 

 

41. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS 

 2023-24 2022-23 

 (Rs.) (Rs.) 

                         Engineering Goods 

                                                                    

 

9,15,300 2,19,39,300 

 

42. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY ( on accrual basis) 

                         Foreign Travelling   6,52,293 2,73,254 

   

 

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 
 

I. Defined Benefits Plans 

The Company has provided for bonus amounting to Rs.2,85,184/- (Previous year 

Rs.2,76,523/-) for all its employees under the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 which has been 

recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year. 

 

The Company has provided for Gratuity amounting to Rs. 1,76,730/- (Previous year Rs.75,904) 

for its eligible employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 which has been recognized 

in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year. 

 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

i) Principal amount remaining unpaid on  Nil 33,892 

ii) Interest due thereon as on  Nil Nil 

iii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 

alongwith the amount of the payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during the year. 

Nil Nil 

iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Nil Nil 

v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at  Nil Nil 

vi) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 

above are actually paid to the small enterprises. 

Nil Nil 
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 II. Defined Contribution Plans 

a) Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund/Pension Scheme 

 

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts as expenses in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss – 

 

 2023-24 

Rs. 

2022-23 

Rs. 

- Employers’ Contribution to Provident  
  Fund/ Pension Scheme  

52,092 59,625 

 

44. LEASE 

  

Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 

 

 2023-24 

Rs. 

2022-23 

Rs. 

(i) Rental expense for small value or short-term 

operating leases 

11,61,948 9,73,500 

(ii) Interest on Lease Liabilities 3,84,785 1,28,054 

(iii) Depreciation on Right of Use Assets 30,93,086 13,31,986 

(iv) Rental income from operating leases 15,38,881 6,96,308 

 

45. SEGMENT REPORTING 

 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of trading in engineering goods and related 

items, which as per Indian Accounting Standard–108 on ‘Operating Segments’ is considered to 
be the only reportable business segment. The Company is operating in India which is 

considered as a single geographical segment.   

 

46. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTIES AS PER THE REQUIREMENT IND AS 24 

 

a) Companies / Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel having significant 

influence and with whom transactions have taken place during the year and/or 

where balances exist: 

 

 i) Candour Techtex Limited  

 

b) Key Management Personnel: 

 

i) Mr. Jayesh R. Mehta – Managing Director 

ii) Mr. Bharat K. Shah – Director and Chief Financial Officer 

iii) Ms. Neelam Devani – Company Secretary & Compliance officer  

 

c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel & Other Related parties: 

 

i) Mrs. Amita J. Mehta – Non-executive Director 

ii) Dr. Bharat Bhatia – Independent Director 

iii) Mr. R.C. Garg – Independent Director 

iv) Mr. Richie Amin – Independent Director  

 

d) Transactions during the year and Balance outstanding at the year end with related 

parties. 
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Nature of Transactions Key-management 

Personnel 

Relatives of Key 

Management 

personnel & Non-

Executive Directors 

 

Companies/ 

Enterprises in which Key 

Management personnel 

have significant influence 

31-03-2024 31-03-2023   31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

Sale of goods       

Candour Techtex Limited      1,69,76,000 25,000 

       

Rent / Lease Obligation 

paid 
  

  
  

Candour Techtex Limited      19,45,827 10,57,371 

       

Rent Received       

Candour Techtex Limited      Nil 5,28,589 

       

Interest Received       

Candour Techtex Limited      11,92,780 Nil 

       

Director Remuneration       

Mr. J. R. Mehta 5,40,000 5,40,000     

       

Directors Sitting Fees       

Mrs. Amita J. Mehta   20,000 20,000   

Dr. Bharat Bhatia   40,000 40,000   

Mr. R.C. Garg   40,000 40,000   

Mr. Bharat Shah   20,000 20,000   

Mr. Richie Amin   20,000 20,000   

       

Salary & Bonus       

Ms. Neelam Devani 1,80,000 1,80,000     

       

Loan Given       

Candour Techtex Limited     3,56,42,880 Nil 

       

Loan received back       

Candour Techtex Limited     2,71,42,880 Nil 

       

Outstanding at the year 

end:- 
  

  
  

i. Trade Receivable       

Candour Techtex Limited     2,00,00,000 Nil 

ii. Trade Payable       

Candour Techtex Limited     Nil 3,60,392 

iii. Unsecured Loans       

Candour Techtex Limited     85,00,000 Nil 

       

 

47. ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION (TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE) AS PER MCA'S 

NOTIFICATION NO. G.S.R. 207(E) DATED 24-03-2021  

 

 

(i) Title deed of Immovable property not held in name of the company 

 

 

 

The Company is the owner of Office Premises the title deeds of which is held in the name of 

the Company 

 

 

 

The Company has taken certain premises on lease and the lease agreements are duly 

executed in favour of the Company. 

 

 

(ii) Fair valuation of investment property 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

CHANDNI MACHINES LIMITED 

87 

 

 

 

 

The fair value of the investment property is not based on the valuation by a registered valuer 

as defined under Rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. 

However, the above valuation of the investment properties are in accordance with the 

Ready Reckoner rates prescribed by the Government of Maharashtra for the purpose of 

levying stamp duty.  

 

 

(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment and Right of Use Assets 

 

 

 

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment and Right of Use Assets 

during the year. 

 

 

(iv) Revaluation of Intangible assets 

 

 

 The Company does not own any Intangible Assets during the year. 

 

 

(v) Loans and advances to Specified Persons. 

 

 

 

The Company has not granted any loans or Advances in nature of loans to Specified 

Persons, namely Promoters, Directors, KMP's & Related Parties which are repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 

 

(vi) Capital - Work in Progress ageing Schedule 

 Capital - Work in Progress Completion Schedule 

 

 

 There is no Capital Work-in-Progress as on the date of the Balance Sheet. 

 

 

(vii) Intangible assets under development Completion Schedule 

 

 

 There is no intangible assets under development as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

 

 

(viii) Details of Benami Property held 

 

 

 The Company does not hold any Benami Property. 

 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 

Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and Rules made there 

under, during the year. 

 

 

(ix) Borrowings secured against currents assets 

 

 

 

The company has not availed any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the 

basis of security of current assets during the year. 

 

 

(x) Willful Defaulter 

 

 

 

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institutions or 

other lenders during the year. 

 

 

(xi) Transaction with Struck off Companies 

 

 

 The Company has not entered into any transactions with struck-off Companies 

 

 

(xii) Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 

 

 

 

The Company has not availed any loans or borrowings against security of its assets hence 

there is no question of registration or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies 

 

 

(xiii) Compliance with number of layers of Companies. 

 

 

 The Company does not have any subsidiary Company 
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(xiv) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 

 

 

 

The Company has not made any scheme of arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. 

 

 

(xv) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

 

 

 

No funds have been advanced / loaned / invested (from borrowed funds or from share 

premium or from any other sources / kind of funds) by the Company to any other person(s) 

or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding (whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 

 

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise) that the Company shall (i) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

 

 

(xvi) Undisclosed income 

 

 

 

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 which were not recorded in the books of 

accounts.  

 

 

(xvii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

 

 

 

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act relating to CSR are not applicable to the 

Company during year. 

 

 

(xviii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

 

 

 

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year. 

 

 

48. ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION (TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE) AS PER 

MCA’S NOTIFICATION NO. G.S.R. 207(E) DATED 24-03-2021 

 

Ratios 
      

Ratios Numerator Denominator Current 

Year 

Previous 

Year 

Variation Explanation for changes 

in ratio exceeding 25% 

Current ratio 

(in times) 

Total current 

assets 

Total current 

liabilities 
1.270 1.64 -22.45% 

Ratio has deteriorated due 

to increase in current 

liabilities. 

Debt service 

coverage 

ratio (in 

times) 

Net Operatin

g Income 

Total debt 

service 

(Interest + 

Lease 

payments) 

6.634 4.17 59.12% 

Higher debt service 

coverage ratio is on 

account of lower finance 

cost. 

Return on 

equity ratio 

(in %) 

Earning for 

equity 

shareholder 

Average 

shareholders 

equity 

22% 5.07% 329.90% 

Higher net profit has 

resulted in higher return 

on equity ratio 

Inventory 

turnover 

ratio (in 

times) 

Revenue 

from 

operations 

Average 

inventory 
40.764 12.57 224.40% 

Ratio has increased due to 

rise in Revenue as 

compared to previous 

year. 
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Trade 

receivable 

turnover 

ratio (in 

times) 

Revenue 

from 

operations 

Average Trade 

receivable 
97.424 236.65 -58.83% 

Reduction in average 

accounts receivable, 

reflecting faster collection 

of dues from debtors 

together with higher net 

credit sales is the reason 

for higher debtor turnover 

ratio 

Trade 

payables 

turnover 

ratio (in 

times) 

Total 

purchases 

Average Trade 

payables 
133.577 217.52 -38.59% 

Improvement in trade 

payable turnover ratio is 

attributable to higher 

credit purchases on the 

one hand and lower 

average trade payable on 

the other hand indicating 

quicker payment of dues 

to creditors 

Net capital 

turnover 

ratio (in 

times) 

Revenue 

from 

operations 

Average 

working 

capital 

62.402 14.78 322.26% 

Ratio has increased due to 

rise in revenue from 

operations. 

Net profit 

ratio (in %) 

Profit for the 

year 

Revenue from 

operations 
1.04% 0.68% 53.93% 

Increase in sales and 

higher margin has resulted 

in rise in net profit margin. 

Return on 

capital 

employed 

(in %) 

Profit before 

tax and 

finance 

costs 

Capital 

Employed 
27.33% 6.96% 292.77% 

Return on capital 

employed has increased 

due to rise in profitability 

on account of higher sales 

and higher margin 

resulting in higher Earning 

before interest and tax 

Return on 

investment 

(in %) 

Income 

generated 

from 

invested 

funds 

Average 

invested 

funds 

                    

-    

                    

-    

                    

-    

Not Applicable 

 

49. CONTINGENT LIABILITY  

 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts represent suits filed by parties and 

disputed by the Company Rs. 22,58,385/- (Previous Year Rs. 22,58,385/-) 
  
 

50. The previous year's figures are grouped / regrouped or arranged / rearranged wherever 

necessary to make them comparable with the current period’s figures. 

 

As per our report of even date On behalf of the Board  

For Ambavat Jain & Associates LLP    

Firm Registration No. 109681W    

       

    J.R. Mehta R.C. Garg  

    Director  Director 

Ashish J. Jain  DIN 00193029 DIN 03346742 

Partner      

Membership No. 111829    

    Neelam Devani Bharat Shah 

    Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

    Membership No. A47166  DIN 08066115  

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai  

Date: 29-05-2024 Date: 29-05-2024  
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